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HARRISON TOWNSHIP BOAR.D OF EDUCATION
120 N. Main St

MaUica HiIl, New fersey 08062
(8s6) 478-2016

fax (856) 478-0699

Dr. Missy Peretti
Saperintendent

Robert E. Schaild
School Business AdminJBoard Secretary

January 3I,2019

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester
Mullica Hill, New Jersey

Dear Board Members and Constituents of Harrison Township:

The.comprehensive annual financial report of the Harrison Township School District (DistricQ for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. AII disclosures
necessary to enable the. reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been
included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general-purpose financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected
financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The Dishict is
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Title2 U.S. Code of
federal regulations, cost principles, and audit requirements for federal awards (uniform guidance); and
State of New Jersey Circular OMB 15-08. Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's
report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings
and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AllD ITS SERVICES: Harrison Township School District is an
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) as established by Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are
included in this report. The Harrison Township Board of Education and all its schools constitute the
District's reporting.enfity..,. 

"

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels pre-K through 6.

These include regular, as well as special education for gifted and handicapped youngsters. The District
completed the 2017-2018 fiscal year with an enrollment of 1,410 students, which is 35 students less than
the previous year's enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District
over the last ten years.
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Fiscal
Year
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Daily
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Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Attendance

7o Change in
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Enrollment

(2.s0%)
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(2.23%)
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(2.73%)

(0.7e%)

(3.3e%)

2.23%

(1.47%)

Attendance
Percentase

95.77%

96.10%

95.79%

95.82%

96.21o/o

95.74%

96.22%

96.37o/o

9s.90%

2017-t8 1,395.8

2016-17 1,43r,6

20t5-t6 1,460.2

2014-15 t,493.5

2013-t4 1,473.3

2012-13 t,441.9

20ll-t2 t,482.30

2010-l I t,494.10

2009-10 1,546.60

1,336.8

1,375.8

1,398.7

1,431.0

1,417.5

1,380.5

1,426.30

1,439.80

1,483.2

1,454.702008-09 1,512.90 96.ts%

2) ECONOMIC CO|TDITION AI\D OUTLOOK: The Harison Township School District
encompasses 20 square miles in land area. It is a mixture of new housing developments and farms with
very little business revenue, and no indushy. The District is currently operating two elementary schools.
The Harrison Township Elementary School capacrty is 835 students, housing students in grades Pre-K
through 3. The grade 4-6 Pleasant Valley School capacity is,763 students, housing students in grades 4
through 6. Major housing developments throughout the area have been, and will continue to be, the
source of all the new students residing in the area. Financially, the District has a majority of homeowner's
ratables to support the education program.

3) MAJOR IITilTIATIVES: The Harrison Township School Dishict is very proud of the fact that many
positive things are continuing to happen in the District.

In the area of curriculum, our Mathematics and English Language Arts Curicula are aligned with the
New Jersey Student Leaming Standards (NJSLS). We will continue to follow any updates on the state
level and will adjust our curriculum, as necessary, to ensure compliance. Our main resource in Language
Arts Literacy is Pearson's Reading Street Series in Grades Kindergarten through Sixth and the Houghton
Mifflin Harcourt's Math Expressions for Mathematics instruction in Grades Kindergarten through Fifttr.
We have also implemented a one to one Google Chrome Book initiative in gradestwo through six. In
Kindergarten and First Grade, each classroom has been equipped with 4 IPads to assist in the
supplemental and extension instruction with our youngest readers and mathematioians. In September, the
Harison Township School District implemented a full day kindergarten program for all studints in order
to support of goals of overall student achievement.,



3) MAJOR INITIATIVES (Cont'd):

Stafftraining has also taken place in the following areas:

1. NJSLS 
:

2. P€arson' Reading Street Series

3. Math Expressions

4. School Safety and Security

5. RTI
6. PARCC

7. Dyslexia
8. Mandated Sectrity Drill Procedures

9. Handle With Care

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONIROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformrty with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept ofreasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost ofa control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District
management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
internal control, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs, as
well as to determine that the Disfiict has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

$ BIIDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the Distict maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure complisnss with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt
service fund. Project-length budgets af,e approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the
capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial
section,

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or af,e included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as resenrations of fund
balance at June 30, 2018.
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6) ACCOUNTING SYST4M AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The accounting system of the Dishict is organized on the basis of funds and account groups.
These funds and account groups are explained in 'Notes to Financial Statements", Note 1.

il CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large partby state statute
as detailed in 'Notes to Financial Statements", Note 2. The Dishict has adopted a cash rnanagement plan
that requires it to deposit public funds in pubiic depositories protected from loss under the prwisions of
the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted n 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution inNew Jersey. The
law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in Newiersey,
where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

8) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board caries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to
general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property
and contents, and fidelity bonds.

9) OTHER INFORMATION:

A) Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Inverso & Stewart, LLC, CPAs,
was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit
also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 as amended n 1996 and the
related OMB Circular 4-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. The auditor's report on the general-
purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is inciuded in
the financial section of this rgport. The auditor's repofts related specifically to the single audit are
included in the single audit section of this report.

10) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the l{arrison Township School Board for
their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and
thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfu lly submitted,

$,t Tt
Dr. Missy Peretti
Superintendent

Robert E. Scharl6
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
(856)983-2244
Fax (856) 983-6674
E-Mail: rinverso@iscprsnj.com

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAg
New Jersey Society of CPAs

II\DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester
Harison Township, New Jersey

Report on the Flnancial Staternents

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-t)?e activities, each
major fund and the aggr.egate remaining fund inforrnation of the Harrison Township School District, in the County of
Gloucester, State of NewJersey, as of and forthe fiscalyearendedJune 30,2018, andtherelatednotestothe financial
statements, which collectively comprise the School Distictls basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibtlity for the Financiul Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes tlte design, implementation and
maintenance of internal contol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Audlto r's Resp o nsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standmds, issued by the Compffoller General of the United States; and
in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Departrnent of Education, State of
New Jersey. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal conffol relevant to the School Distict's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School Disfrict's internal control. Accordingly,I express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofsigrificant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions.
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Oplnlons

In my opinion, the furancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Harrison Township School District, in the County of Gloucester, State of New Jersey, as of June 30,
2018, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Aher Matters

Required Supplementary Inforrnation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability, and schedule of the School District's contibutions, schedule of the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the School Distict and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios as listed in the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. I have applied cer0ain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements.
I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forrning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Harrison Township School District's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining statements and
related major fund supporting statements and schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis, as required by the Office of School Finance, Deparfinent of Education, State of New Jersey and axe not a
required part ofthe basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of state financial assistance, as required by
State of New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid, is also presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part ofthe basic financial statements.

The accompanying combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the under$ing accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my
opinion, the accompanying combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic furancial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table ofcontents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on tlem.
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Other Reporting Reqaired by GovemmentAuditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated January 31, 2018 on my
consideration of the Harrison Township School District's intemal contol over financial reporting and my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Harrison Township School District's internal confrol over financial reporting and compliance.

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

fu1,+
Marlton, New Jersey
January 31,2018

Robert P. Inverso
Certifi ed Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001 095
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651 Route 73 Nortb, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
(8s6)9E3-2244
Fax (856) 9E3-6674
E-Mail : rinverso@iscprsnj.com

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAs
New Jersey Society ofCPAs

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AI\D ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN ATJDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AADITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Harrison Township School Disfiict
County of Gloucester
Harrison Township, New Jersey

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in the Government Auditing Standmds, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Offrce of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Harrison Township School District, in
the County ofGloucester, State ofNew Jersey, as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements, 4nd have issued my
report thereon dated January 3I,2019.

fnternal Control Over Flnancial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the furancial statements, I considered the Harrison Township School District's
internal control over financial reporting (internal confrol) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal contol. Accordingly, I do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Harison Township School District's internal control.

A deticiency in internal control exists when the desigr or operation of a contol does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on
a timely basis. A material wealmess is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal contol, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's furancial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A signilicant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemance.

My consideration of internal confol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identi$ all deficiencies in internal contol that might be material weaknesses or sigtificant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identiS any deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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K-1
Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Harrison Township School Disfrict's fmancial statements are
free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. Howevsr, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my
audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other maffers that are required to be reported under Government Audit@ Standqrds and audit requirements as

prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Deparfrnent of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of intemal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Distict's internal confrol or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Oflice of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and
federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, in considering the School District's internal contol and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Robert P. Inverso
Cenified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001095

Marlton, New Jersey
Janupry 31,2019
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Management's Discussion and Analysis



Township of Harrison School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

As management of the Board of Education of the Township of Harrison, New Jersey (School District), we
offer readers of the School District's financial statements this narative overview and analysis of the School
Disftict for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of fransmittal, which can be
found in the introductory section ofthis report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the School District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $65,654 (net position).

Governmental activities have unresticted deficit net position of $7,400,938. The accounting
treatrnents in the governmental funds for compensated absences payable, net pension liability,
the last two state aid payments, and the state statute that prohibits school disficts from
maintaining more than 2Yo of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance are primarily
responsible for this deficit balance.

The total net position of the School Disfict increased $435,843, or a ll7.74Yo increase from
the prioi fiscal year-end balance.

Fund balance of the School Disfrict's governmental funds increased $5,211,857 resulting in an
ending frrnd balance of $2,261,071. This increase is due to the results of operations in the
capitalprojects fund.

Business-type activities have unrestricted net position of $58,568, which may be used to meet
the School Disfict's ongoing obligations of the food service operations.

The School District's long-term obligations increased by $1,434,737 which is the result of the
bond issuance, payment of bond principal, paynent of capital lease principal, decrease in
pension liability, and an increase in compensated absences.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School District's basic financial
statements. Comparison to the prior year's activity is provided in this document. The basic financial
statements are comprised of tlree components: l) Disfict-wide financial statements, 2) Fund financial
statements, and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

District-wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial stqtements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
financial activities in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The district-wide financial statements

include the statement of net position and the statement of activities.

I
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The statement of net position presents information about all ofthe School District's assets and liabilities. The
difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net position. Over time, changes in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School District is improving or
deteriorating.

TIte statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the School Disfiict changed
during the current fiscal year. Changes in net position are recorded in the statement of activities when the
underlying event occurs, regardless ofthe timing ofrelated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement even though the resulting cash flows may be recorded in a future period.

Both of the district-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the School District that are supported
from taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) and other functions that are intended to
recover all or most of their costs from user fees and charges (business-type activities). Governmental
activities consolidate governmental funds including the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital
Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund. Business-t1rye activities include the Food Service Fund.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund Jinancial statements are designed to demonstrate compliance with finance-related requirements. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain confol over resources that have been segregated
for specific objectives. All ofthe funds ofthe School Disfict are divided into three categories: governmental

funds, pr opriet ary funds and Jiduci ary funds.

Governmental funds account for essentially the same information reported in the govenrmental activities of
the district-wide financial statements. However, unlike the district-wide financial statements, the
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term financial resources and fund balances. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the financing requirements in the near term.

Since the governmental funds and the governmental activities report information using the same functions,
it is useful to compare the information presented. Because the focus of each report differs, a reconciliation
is provided on the fund financial statemints to assist the reader in comparing the near-term requirements with
the long-term needs.

The School District maintains four individual governmental funds. The major funds are the General Fund,
the Special Revenue Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. They are presented
separately in the fund financial statements.

The School District adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and

the Debt Service Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each of these funds to
demonstate compliance with budgetary requirements.

Proprietary funds are used to present the same functions as the business-type activities presented in the
district-wide financial statements. The School District maintains one type of proprietary fund - the Enterprise
Fund. The fund financial statements of the enterprise fund provides the same information as the disfrict-wide
financial statements, only in more detail.

The School Disfiict's one enterprise fund (Food Service Fund) is considered to be a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.

Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the distict-wide financial statements because the resources ofthose funds
are not available to support the School Disfiict's programs.
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Notes to the Basic F'inancial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic furancial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains other
supplementary information and schedules required by the New Jersey Audit Program, issued by the New
Jersey Department of Education.

District-wide Financial Analysis

The assets of the School Disfict are classified as current assets and capital assets. Cash, investrnents,
receivables, inventories and prepaid expenses are current assets. These assets are available to provide
resources for the near-term operations of the School District. The majority of the current assets are the results
ofthe tax levy and state aid collection process.

Capital assets axe used in the operations of the School Distict. These assets are land, buildings,
improvements, equipment and vehicles. Capital assets axe discussed in greater detail in the section titled,
Capital Assets and Debt Administation, elsewhere in this analysis.

Current and long-term liabilities are classified based on anticipated liquidation either in the near-term or in
the future. Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits, unearned revenues,
and current debt obligations. The liquidation of current liabilities is anticipated to be either from currently
available resources, current assets or new resourbes that become available during fiscal year 2018. Long-
term liabilities such as long-term debt obligations and compensated absences payable will be liquidated from
resowces that will become available after fiscal year 2018.

The liabilities of the primary government activities exceeded assets by $1,512 with an unrestricted deficit
balance of $7,400,937. The net position of the primary government does not include internal balances.

A net investrnent of 54,935,734 in land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles provides the
services to the School Distict's 1,396 public school students. Net position of $97,599 has been resficted to
provide resources for future capital expansion and renovation projects; and $553,761 has been resficted for
maintenance while $1,316,497 has been restricted for budget appropriation and $495,834 reserved for year -

end encumbrances.

As mentioned earlier, the balance of unrestricted net position is primarily due to the accounting freaftnent for
compensated absences payable, net pension liability, and the last two state aid payments, and state statutes

that prohibit school districts from maintaining more than ZYo of its adopted budget as unresticted fund
balance.
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Township of Harrison School District
Comparative Summary of Net Position

As ofJune 30, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS

Cunent assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of
Resources

LIABILITIES
Cunent liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Defened Inflows of
Resources

Net Position

Net Position Consist of:
Net investment in

capital assets

Restricted Assets

Unrestricted Assets

t.728,924 2,576,t85

Govemmental Activities
2018 20t7

$ 3,849,540 $ 4,373,324
14,490,39713.715,148

17,564,699 18,963,71 i

Business-Type Activities
2018 2017

$ 70,149 $ 63,767

9,364

District-Wide
2018 20t7

8,5?8

78,747

$ 3,919,689

13,723,746

17,643,435

s 4,437,091

14,499,751

73,131 18,936.842

1,728,924 2,576,195

2,794,525

14,672,079
8,556,217

l3.l56,758
t7 17,478,t85 21,712,975

1,828,520 t70,24t 1,828"s20 t70,241

$ (1,512) $ (426,475) $ 67,t66 $ 56,296::- $ 65,654 $ (370,189)

8,539,372 I l,5gl 16,945

13.1s6.7s8

21,696,t30 11,581 16.845

2,906,106
14,672,079

$ 4,935,734
2,463,691

(7,400,937\

$ 9,559,773 $
(2,757,884)

$ 9,364

46,922

$ 4,944,332
2,463,691

$ 9,569,137
(2,757,994)

8,598

58,568 0 (7.181,442\

Net Position $ 0,s12) $ (426,475) $ 67,166 $ 56,286 $ 65,654 $ (370,189)

Governmental Activities

Key elements of the increase in net position for governmental activities are as follows:

. The increase is a result ofthe bond sale.
Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the School District's net position slightly. Key elements of the increase in
net position for business-type activities are as follows:

. The Food Service Program had a net gain of $10,880.
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Township of Harrison School District
Comparative Schedule of Changes in Net Position

As ofand for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 and20l7

Cn vemnBntal A ctiv ities

2018 20t7

Bus ines s -Type Activities

2018 2017

District-Wide

2018 20t7

Revenues:

Charges forservices

Operating grants and

contributions

Crneral Revenues

Property tarcs

State aid - unrestricted

Tution

Other revenues

Total Revenues

Elpenses:

Cn vemrpntal A ctiv ities :

Instruction

luflnn
Related sewices

Administrative services

Operations and

Maintenance

Transportation

Central Services

Eaployee benefits

krtercst on debt

Other

loss on disposal of
capital assets

Bus ines s -Type Activities :

Food Service

Total Bpenses

Increase (Decrcase) in Net

Po s ition before trans fers

Transftn

Change in Net Position

Net Position, July I
Net Position, June 30

$ $ $ 2t8,269 $ n4,953 $ 218269 $ 224,953

10,596,262 3,063,093 102,064 ll0,3l7 10,698,326 3,173,410

12,857,325

6,206,597

262,091

214,478

12,563,880

6,211,573

195,845

173,781

1L857,325

6,2M,597

262,091

214,478

12,563,880

6,211,573

195,845

173,781

30,136,753 n208,172 320,333 335,270 30,457.086 n,543,442

g,g05,l6g

34,364

l,7lo,2g4

l,ol0,43g

2,106,667

1,198,694

617,733

12,991,252

1869s8

50,231

9,493,973

26,915

1,81q320

l,ll0,l?5

6,385,708

1,238,2U

576,657

6,134889

l4l,2l0
51,949

g,g05,l6g

34,364

t,7t02u
1,010,439

\106,667
1,198,694

617,733

12,991,252

r86e58

50,231

9,493,973

26,915

l,glg,320

l,l 10,126

6,395,709

1,2382U

576,657

6134,889

t4t2t0
51,949

30q4s3 328.644 3W,453 328,M

29,7n.790 26,n8,931 30q453 328,U4 30,021,243 27,307,575

424,963 (4,770,759) lo,88o 6,626 435,943 (4,764,133)

424,963

(426,475)

(4,770,759)

4,344,2U

10,880

56,286 4g,6ffi 7
435,843

(370,189)

(4,7U,133)

4,393,944

6,626

$ 0,512) $ (a6,475) $ 67,166 $ 56286 $ 65,654 $ (370,189)

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the School District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the School Disfiict's govemmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $2,261,071, an increase of $5,211,857 in comparison with the prior year.

The unreserved fund balance for the School Distict at the end of the fiscal year includes a deficit unreserved
fund balance of $202,620 in the General Fund, an unreserved fund balance of $90,977 in Capital Projects
Fund and $l in the Debt Service Fund. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is
not available for new spending because it has already been committed l) as resticted cash reserved for future
capital outlay expenditures 96,622,2) appropriated as a revenue source in the subsequent year's budget
$651,913, 3) reserve for encumbrances $495,834 4) reserved for maintenance $553,761 or 5) reserved for
future budget appropriation in accordance with state statutes $664,584.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the School District. As discussed earlier, the balance in the
unreserved fund balance is due, primarily, to the accounting treaflnent of the last two state aid payments and
state statutes that prohibit New Jersey school districts from maintaining more than2o/o of its adopted budget
as unrestricted fund balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There is no difference between the original budget and the final amended budget.

At the end ofthe current fiScal year, unreserved frrnd balance (budgetary basis) ofthe general fund was

$403,073, while total fund balance (budgetary basis) was $2,775,787. As a measure of the general fund's
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis) and total fund balance
(budgetary basis) to total general fund expenditures. Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures of the General
Fund including other financing uses amounted to $21,030,483. Unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis)
represents l.92Yo of expenditures while total fund balance (budgetary basis) represents 13.l9Yo of that same

amount.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The School Disfict's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June

30, 2018, totaled $13,723,746 (net of accumulated depreciation). This invesfrnent in capital assets includes
land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles. The total decrease in the District's invesfrnent in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was $776,005, or a 5.35%o decrease. The decrease is primarily due

to depreciation expense.

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
June 30, 2018 and20l7

Governmental Activities
2018 2017

Business-Type Activities
2018 2017

District-Wide
201 8 20t7

$ 430,000 $ 430,000Land
Building and Building

Improvements

Equipment

$ 430,000 $ 430,000

$ 8,598

$ 13,715,148 $ 14,490,387 $ 8,598

12,581,710

703,438

13,207,042

853,345 $ 9.364

$ 9,364

12,581,710
712.036

13,207,042
862.709

Total
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Additional information on the School Disfiict's capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic financial
statements (Note 5) of this report.

Long-term debt -Durngthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the School District had $8,475,000 in serial
bonds payable and $501,676 in compensated absences.

State statutes limit the amount ofgeneral obligation debt that the District may issue. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the legal debt limit was $37,385,775. The available amount as of June 30, 2018 was $28,910,775.

Additional information on the School District's long-term obligations can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements (Note 7) of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered and incorporated into the preparation of the School District's budget
for the 2018-19 fiscal year.

For the 2018-19 fiscal year the School District will be receiving a slight decrease in state aid. The
local tax levy in the General Fund increasedby $244,684 or 2.00Yo. The 2018-19 General Fund
Budget increased $36,993 over previous year. The tax rate for 2018 is $.856, which is a slight
increase from the previous year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe School District's finances for all those
with an interest in the School Distict. Questions concerning any of the informatiotr provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Township of Harrison School
District Business Administrator, 120 N. Main St., Mullica Hill, New Jersey 08062.
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A-l
TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Governmental
Actlvitles

Buslness-type
Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
lnventory
Restricted assets:

Capital feserve account
Maintenance reserve account

Capitalassets, net (Note 5)

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Defened outflows of resources from pensions

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable

Related to pensions
Other

Contracts payable
lntergovernmental payable:

State
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest due within one year
Noncunent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURGES:
Deferred lnflows of regources from pensions

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCE$

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for':

Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 3,225,421.42
63,736.54

6,621.69
553,760.75

13,?1s,14p.00

17,564,68S.40

" 1,728,924.00

2.40

$ 54,988.77
4,424.47

10,735.92

$ 3,280,410.19
68,161.01
10,735.92

8,598.00

6,621.69
553,760.75

13,723,746.00

7817!7.16 17,643,435.56

1,728,924.04

78,747.16 19,372,359.56

258,159.00
57,992.61

1,504,318.57

11,849.62
14,308.48

126,191.12

821,706.00
14.672.079.05

11,581.56

258,159.00
57,992.61

1,504,318.57

'11,849.62
25,890.04

126,151.12

821,706.00
14,672,079.O5

17,466,604.+5 1J,581.56 17.478.186.0',1

,520.00 - 1,8-28,520.00

19,295,'t24.45 11.581.56 19,306,706.01

4,935,734.00 8,598.00 4,944,332.00

0.31
97,598.84

2,366,092.37
(7.400,937.57)

0.31
97,598.84

2,366,092.37
58,567.60 (7 ,369.97)

$ (1,512.05) $ 67,165.60 $

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20'18

Prggram Revenues
Operating

Charges for Grants and
Services Gontributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

$

Govemmental
Activities

$ (6,895,207.81)
('1,699,162.93)

(919,760.71)

(34,364.00)
(1,60e,12e.41)

(427,297.54)
(s83,141.2s)
(617,733.3s)

(2,106,666.93)
(1,1s8,6e3.90)
(3,os2,265.43)

(s,08s.0o)
118,126.94
(41,142.OO)

(19,1 15,s27.36)

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Ghanqes in Net Position

Busines3-type
Activities

$

A-2

Total

$ (6,89s,207.61)
(1,699,162.93)

(919,760.71)

Functions/Programs

Govemmental activities:
lnstruction:

Regular
Special education
Other instruction

Support Services:
Tuition
Student & instruc*ion related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Central services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pufil transportation
Unallocated employee benefds

Transfer to Charter Schools
lnterest and other costs on long-term debt
Unallocated depreciation and amortization

Total govemrnental activities

Business-type aclivities:
Food service prcgram
Total business-type ac.tivities

Total primary govemment

Expenses

$ 6,952,533.16
1,932,E74.O7

919,760.71

$ $ 57,325.35
233,711.14

101,154.43

9,898,9E6.25

305,085.00

10.596.262.17

'102,064.24
102.064.24

p4,3ar.00)
(1,609,129.41)

(427,297.54'
(s83,141.29)
(617,733.3s)

(2,106,666.93)
(1,1e8,693.s0)
(3,092,265.43)

(e,08e.00)
't18,126.94
141 1120,01

N
o)

34,364.00
1,710,283.84

427,297.54
5E3,141.29
617,733.35

2,106,666.93
1,198,693.90

'12,991,251.68

9,089.00
186,958.06
41,142.OO

29,711,789.53

309,453.41
309,453.41

214.264.76
21A16A7A

10,879.59
10,879.59

.to 879 59

10,E79.59

(19,1't5,527.36)

10_879 59
10.879.59

('t9/to4,u7.771

12,234,206.OO

623,1 19.00
6,206,597.4E

262,090.69
76,062.00
2,493.61

135,922.01
19;540,490.79

435,E43.02

30.021.242.9M 2',t8.268.76 10.698.326.41

General revenues:
Taxes:

Prcperty taxes, levied for general purposes, net
'Taxes levied for debt service

Federal and state aid not restric'ted
Tuition charges
Transportation charges
lnvestment eamings
Miscellaneous inome

Total general revenues, special items, extraordinary items and transfers
Change in Net Position

(19.1 15 527 36)

12,234,206.00
623,1 19.00

6,206,597.48
262,090.69

76,062.00
2,493.61

135.922.01
19,540,490.79

424:!fi}.43

Net Position - July 1
Net Position - June 30

(4%,475.48) s6,286.01 (370,189.47)
$ (1,512.00 $ 67,165.60 $ 65.653.55

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-1
TOWNSEIP OF EARRISON SCEOOL DISTBICT

Brlance Sheet

Govenme[trl trundr
Jule 30' 2018

Cmml
Fund

Special

Revenue
Debt

Sewico
Fmd

Total
Govemmmtal

FundsFund

C.pital
Proj€ats

Fud

g t,s95,29s.72 S

ASSEIS

Asscts:

Cash ond cuh equivalents
Receivables, net

tnterfund roceivable

Resticted cash and cash cquivalents

Total sss€ts

LIABILITIES AND FI'NII BAI,ANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts peyablo

Contsasts payable

Tmporary note psysble

Intcgovemmentsl peyable:

State

Uneamed revmues
Interfrmd payable

Total liabilities

Fund Balancss:
Resticted for:

Excess surplus
Excess Surplus - Designated for

Subsequeit YeaCs Expendinres
Capital r€serYe acaout
Mahtenanco reservo accout

Assigned to:
Year-md encrmb'ianc€s
Dosignated for subsequcnt

yeat's xpendihres
Unassigncd

Total fimd bolances

Total liabilities md ftnd balmces

$ I,630,125.39

39,833.00

n145.44
560,382.44

0.3r s 3,22s,42t.42
57,736.54

t1,445.M
560,382.44

t7,903.54

2,U1,7E6.27 17,903.54 t.595.295.72 0.31

57,992.6t

1,504,318.57

13,700.00

tt,E49.62
60E.4t

7t,692.61 171903.54. 1,504,318.57

664,584.t9

6U,98t.68
6,62t.69

553,7@.75

495,E34.43

26,931.32
(m2,62o.+0\ 90,w.15 0.31

2.1 70,093.6 w,977.15 0.31

j 2,241,786.27 -g-!xeo3.ll- s 1,s95,29s.72 $ 0.31

Amounts rcport€d for govcrnncntal activities in the statrmflt ofnet position
(A-l) are diffcrent bccausc:

Capital msets used in govemmental activitics aro not fimcial resomes
md therefore are ruit rcportcd in thc fulds. The cost ofthe assets is

$34164,590.00 and the accumulatcd depreciation b S16,.149,442.00.

Aacrued interest is not due md payable in the currcnt p€riod and
thcrcforo is not reported as a liability in the finds.

Acaounts psyabl€ relatEd to dr€ April l, 2019 requircd PERS
contribution that is not to be liquidsted with cunent financlat
resourc0S.

Thc Distsict's proportionatE shore ofnet pension assets md liabilities
u wll s pmion-related deferred oudlows and deferred inflows of
resrrces erc recognired in the gwernment-widc statgments and includo:

Deferred Oudlows of remrmes from Pensions 1,728,924.00

Net Pension Liability (6,21?,695.00)
Deferred,Inflows of rssoucos fron Pensims (1,E2E,520.00)

Lmg-tm liabilities, including bonds payable, ar€ not du€ and payablo

in the curr€nt psiod and therefore arc not reported as liabilities in the

funds.

5,445.44

57,992.6t

1,504,318.57

1t,849.62
t4,30E.48
s,445.44

t.593.9t4.72

Ssial bonds payable

Copital lmsos payable

Compcnsated absonces

(8,77eAt4.oo'

(501,676.05)

664,584.19

6U,981.68
6,621.69

553,760.75

495,t34.43

26,93t.32
(rtt,642.94\

2,261,0'1.t2

t3,715,t4E.00

(t26,tet.t2)

(258,159.00)

(6,3t2,29t.@\

(9,2E1,090.05)

Net position of govemmcntrl activitios

The accompmying Notes to thc Basic Finmcial Statcm€nB arc an integral part dforis statenmt
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B-2
TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCEOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenu€s, Expenditures and Chatrges in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
for the Fiscsl Year Ended June 30, 2018

General

Fund

Special

Revenue

Fund

Capital

Projects

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

Total
Govemmental

Funds
REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax levy
Tuition charges

Transportation fees

Capital Reserve - Interest eamed

Maintenance Reserve - Interest eamed
Miscellaneous

Total revenuesJocal sources

State sources

Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURESs
Current expense:

Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other instruction
Support services and undisributed cosr:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services

General administrative services

School administative services

Cental services

Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation

Unallocated employee benefits

Capital outlay
Transfer to Charter School

Debt service:

Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Bond Proceeds

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, July I

Fund balanoes, June 30

21,s91,224.52 396,659.44

$ 12,234,206.00

262,090.69

76,062.00

19.88

2,473.',t3

1 3 1,530.49 4,391.52

$ s $ 623,119.00 $ 12,857,325.00

262,090.69

76,062.00

19.88

2,473.73

135,922.01

12,706,382.79

8,884,841.73

4,391.52 623,1 19.00

305,085.00

13,333,893.3 I

49,031.38

343,236.54

9,238,958. I I
343,236.s4

928,204.00 22,916,087.96

6,288,755.83

1,699,162.93

9t9,760.t1

57,32s.35

233,711.14

34,364.00

1,609,129.41

345,012.54

583,14t.29
617,733.35

1,893,875.50

1,198,693.90

5,696,954.16

I 34,8 10.00

9,089.00

10 1,1 54.43

4,468.52

2t,030,482.62 396,659.44

67,163.43

6,346,081. l8
1,932,874.07

919,760.71

34,364.00

1,7r0,283.84
34s,012.54

583,141.29

617,733.35

1,893,875.50

1,198,693.90

5,701,422.68

201,973.43

9,089.00

7s5,000.00

179,925.00

755,000.00

179,925.00

67,163.43 934,925.00 22,429,230.49

560,741.90 (67.163.43\ (6.?21.00) 486,857.47

4,725,000.00 4,725,000.00

4,725,000.00 4,725,000.00

560,741.90

r,609,3s1.76

s 2.170,093.66 $

4,657,836.57
(4,s66,8s9.42)

(6,721.00)

6,721.3t
5,211,857.47

5 90,977.1s $ 0.31 $ 2,261,071.t2

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integml part ofthis statement.
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TOWNSEIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement ofActivities

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

$ (822,848.00)

47,609.00

B-3

$ 5,211,8s7.47

(775,239.00)

755,000.00

(4,725,000.00)

56,200.00

65,000.00

(63,233.06)

(69,164.00)

(30.457.98)

g 424,963.43

Total net ohange in fund balances - govemmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement ofactivities (A-2)
are differont because:

Capital outlays are reported in the govemmental funds as expenditures.
However, on the statement ofactivities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current fiscal year.

Depreciation expense

Loss on Disposal ofAssets
Capital outlay

Repayment ofbond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and
is reported in the stat€ment ofactivities.

The proceeds of a bond issue is an other financing source of revenue in the
governmental funds but is not reported in the statement ofaotivities.

Govemmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are amortized in the statement
ofactivities. This amount is the net effect ofthese differences.

Repayment ofoapital lease principal is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement ofnet position and
is reported in the statement ofactivities.

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is acorued, regardless of
when due. In the govemmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued
interest is an addition in the reconcilation.

Net differences between pension system contributions recognized in the fund statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances and the statement of activities.

In the statement ofactivities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated

absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts eamed during the
year. In tlrc govemmental funds, however, expenditures for these items

are reported in the amount of firarcial resources used (paid). When the
eamed amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in
the reconciliation O; when the paid amount exceeds the eamed amount

the difference is an additioh to the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position ofgovemmental activities
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TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30,2018

B-4

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

2018

$ 54,988.77

4,424.47

10,735.92

70,149.16

303,582.00
(294,984.00)

8,598.00

g 78,747.16

$
I 1,581.56

I1,581.56

8,598.00

58,567.60

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Uneamed revenue

Total liabilities

NETASSETS:
Invested in capital assets net of

related debt

Unrestricted

Total net position $67 165.60

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCIIOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 2018

B-5

Business-type
Activities

'@-

2018

$ 116,062.21

102,206.55

2t8,268.76

131,929.96

11,871.39

12,700.17

3,049.00

20,557.32

259.37
4,834.35

93,510.97

30,740.88

309,453.41

(91,184.65)

3,168.76

70,025.33
1,446.58

27,423.57

102,064.24

10,879.59

56,286.01

Operating revenues:

Charges for services:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs

Daily sales-non-reimbursable programs

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:

Salaries

Benefits

Supplies and materials

Depreciation

Management fee

Direct expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Cost of sales - reimbursable programs

Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

State sources:

State school lunch program

Federal sources:

National school lunch program

Milk
U.S.D.A. commodities

Total ilonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

Total net position - July I

Total net position - June 30 $ 67,165.60

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSIilP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statemcnt of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 2018

B-6

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

2018

$ 220,091.64
( l 43,80 1.35)

(140,771. l8)
(64,480.89)

3,125.6s

73,377.s4

76,503.19

(2,283.00)

9,739.30

45,249.47

$ 54,988.77

$ (91,184.65)

3,049.00

27,423.57

t,494.29
(7,085.e8)

1,822.88

26,703.76

_q_(g14!9.8e1

Crsh flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers

Payments to enrployees

Payments to suppliers

Net cash used for operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources

Federal sources

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from crpital activities:
Purchases of fxed assets

Cash llows from investing activities:
lnterest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Balances - July I

Balances - June 30

Reconciliation ofoperating loss to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustnents to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation

Federal commodities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(ncrease) decnease in inventories

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Total adjusnnents

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Payroll deductions and withholdings

Accounts payable

Due !o student groups

Intofund payable

Total liabilities

Net Position:
Held in trust for unemployment claims

Held in trust for claims

t

TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2018

Unemployment
Compensation

$ t47,230.23 $ 6,863.40 $ 37,099.64

8,485.00

147,230.23 6,863.40

--

45,584.64

$ $ $ 2,603.08

42,981.56

350.25

6,000.00

$ 6,000.00 $ 45,584.64

$ 146,879.98

$ 863.40

B-7

Flexible
Spending

Account
Agency

Funds
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B-8
TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust

$

31,531.25
332.59

31,863.84

12,493.85

12,493.85

19,369.99

127,509.99

$ 146,879.98 $

Flexible
Spending
Account

ADDITIONS:
Board contributions
Employee contributions
Interest on Investnents

Net contributions

DEDUCTIONS:
Flexible Spending Account Claims

Unemployment Claims
Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position - July I

Net position - June 30

s
18,350.00

18,350.00

20,376.93

20,376.93

(2,026.93)

2,890.33

863.40
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity - The Township of Harrison School District (DistricQ is a Type II school district located in Gloucester
County, New Jersey and covers an area of approximately 20 miles. As a Type II school distic$ it functions independently
through a Board of Education. The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three-yebr terms. These terms are

staggered so that three member's terms expire each year, The purpose of the District is to provide educational services for
all of the Township of Harrison's students in grades K through 6. The Township of Harrison School District has an

approximate enrollment at June 30, 2018 of 1,396 students.

The primary criteria for including activities within the School District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codi/ication of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the School District. Oversight responsibility includes

furancial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence
operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the School district
over which the Board exercises operating control.

Component Units - GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entiry andGASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Unit, provide guidance that all entities associated with a primary government

are potential component units and should be evaluated for inclusion in the financial reporting entity. A primary government

is financially accountable not only for the organizations that make up its legal entity, but also for legally separate

organizations that meet the criteria established by GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39. In addition, GASB Statement No.

61, provides additional guidance for organizations that do not meet the financial accountability criteria for inclusion as

component units but that nevertheless should be included because the primary government's management determines that it
would be misleading to exclude them. GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - an

Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 amends the blending requirements for the furancial statement presentation of
component units of all state and local govemments. The additional criteria requires blending of a component unit
incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary govenment is the sole corporate member. There were no

additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, Furthorrnore, the

School Distict is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units. The Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial

reporting principles. The more significant of the School Districfs accounting policies are described below.

The School Disfiicfs basic furancial statements consists of government-wide statements, including a statement ofnet position

and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information

about the School District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary govenment,

except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between those activities of the School Distict that are

govemmental and those that are considered business-type activities. The statement of net position presents the

frnancial condition of the governmental and business-type activities of the School Disfiict at fiscal year-end. The

statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or

function of the School District's governmental activities and for the business-type activities of the School District.
Direct expenses are those that areipecifically associated with a service, program or departnerrt and, therefore, clearly
identifiable to a particular function. The policy ofthe School District is to not allocate indirect expenses to functions

in the statement of activities. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered

by the program, grants and confiibutions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular progfam and interest earned or grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues,

which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues ofthe School Disfiict, with certain
limited exceptions.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-wide Statements (Continued) - The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies
the extent to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the School District.

Fund Financial Statements - During the fiscal year, the School Distict segregates transactions related to certain
School Distict functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonsfiate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are desigrred to present financial information ofthe School Disfrict at this more
detailed level. The focus of govenrmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major
fund is presented in a single column. The fiduciary fund is reported by type. The School Disfiict uses funds to
maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entrty with a self-
balaneing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds: governrnental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances ofcurrent financial resources. Expendable assets are
assigred to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities
are assigned to the frurd from which they will be paid. The di'fference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is
reported as fund balance. The following are the School District's major govemmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School District and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Deparhent ofEducation, the School District includes budgeted capital outlay in
this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as they pertain to governmental

entities state that general fund resources may be used to directly furance capital outlays for long-lived improvements
as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unresfricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid, disfrict taxes and
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those which result in the acquisition of or additions to capital assets for
land, existing buildings, irnprovements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings
and the purchase of built-in equipment.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds ofspecific revenues

sources that are resticted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account and report financial resources that are resticted,
committed, or assigred to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities
and other capital assets, bther than those financed by proprietary funds. The financial resources are derived from New
Jersey Economic Development Authorrty grants, temporary notes or serial bonds which are specifically authorized by
the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are resficted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SIIMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOIINTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for the School District's ongoing activities, which are similar to
those in the private sector.

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the School District is that all costs (expenses, including
depreciation) ofproviding goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or, where the School District has decided that periodic determination ofrevenues eanted, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management contol, accountability,
or other purposes

The School Distict's enterprise fund is:

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for the furancial transactions related to the food service operations of the
School District.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that
all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.

Their reported fund equity (net position) is segregated into investnent in capital assets, net ofrelated debt, and unresfficted
net position, ifapplicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses)

in net total position.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their operations.

Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated

useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment 12 Years
Light Trucls and Vehicles 4 Years
Heavy Trucks and Vehicles 6 Years

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund category

is split into two classifications: trust funds and agency funds. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the School

Distict in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds (i.e.

payroll and student activities). They are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not lnvolve measurement of
results of operations. The School District has four fiduciary funds; an unemployment compensation ffust fund, a flexible
spending account, a student activity fund, and a payroll fund.

I

Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic

resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the School District are included

on the statement qf net position.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources

measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the

balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e, revenues

and other financing sources) and uses (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This

approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are

prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identi$ the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the goverffnent-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources

measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement

of net position.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) - The statement of changes in fund net position presents increases (i.e. revenues)
and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net total position. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the School
District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus.

Basis of accounting determines when ftansactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds
use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Froprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of
unearned revenue, and in the presentation ofexpenses versus expenditures.

Basis of Accountins

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each
par[y gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be detennined and "available" means that the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the School Distict, available means expected to be received within sixty days after fiscal
year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School Distict receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include Ad Valorem (properly) taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. Ad Valorem @roperly) Taxes are susceptible
to accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of
taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The School District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year since the revenue is both measurable and available.
The School District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an "accounts receivable". With the exception of resticted formula aids recorded in the special revenue
fund revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recopized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specifr the fiscal year when the resources

are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the School Distict
must provide local resources to be used for a specified pu{pose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are

provided to the School Distict on a reimbursement basis.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at
fiscal year-end; tuition, grants, fees, and rentals.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recogtized at the time they are incurred. The
fair value of donated commodities used during the fiscal year is reported in the operating statement as an expense. Unused

donated commodities are reported as uneamed revenue. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on
decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures axe generally recognized in the

accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation
andarnortization, are not recognized in govemmental funds.

Budgets/Budgetary Control - Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each fiscal year for the general,

special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for their approval. Budgets are

prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant

totheminimumchartofaccountsreferencedinN.J.A.C.6:Z3A-16.2(f)1. TransfersofappropriationsmaybemadebySchool
Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C.6A:234-13.3.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued) - Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a
management control device during the fiscal year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the
exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes
only and the special revenue fund. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration
in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the budgetary basis. The budgetary basis differs frorn
GAAP in that the budgetary basis recogrrizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recopizes the related revenues,
whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP
basis financial reports. The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C-1, Exhibit C-2 andExhibit I-3, includes all amendments to the
adoptedbudget, ifany.

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue fund revenues and expenditures from
the budgetary basis ofaccounting as presented in the general fund budgetary comparison schedule and the special revenue
fundbudgetary comparison schedule to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented inthe statement ofrevenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds. Note that the School District does not report encumbrances outstanding
at yeff end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows modified accrual basis with the

exception of the revenue recognition policy for the one or more June state aid payments.

Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion ofthe applicable appropriation. Encumbrances are a component offund balance

at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts
for goods and services. Open encumbrances in govemmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, which have not
been previously restricted, committed, or assigned, should be included within committed or assigned fund balance, as

appropriate.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, however, for which the School Disfiict has received advances of grant-

awards, and all eligibility and time requirements satisfied are reflected on the balance sheet as unearned grant revenue at

fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the beginning of the

next fiscal yeaf, to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of
the current fiscal year end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents, for all firnds, include petty cash, change funds, cash

in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at

cost plus accrued interest. Such is the definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the statement of cash flows for the
proprietary funds. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of inveslnents and types of financial institutions they may invest in.
N.J.S.A. I8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

N.J.S.A. l7:94let seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The statute requires

that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with
the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA), a multiple financial institution collateral pool, which was enacted

in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. Public
depositories include State or Federally chartered banks, savings banks or associations located in or having a branch office in
the State of New Jersey, the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having
a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public

depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Tuition Receivable - Tuition charges were established by the School Disfiict based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined.

Tuition Payable - Tuition charges for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and20l7 were based on rates established by the
receiving school district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost which approximates market. The costs are determined on a first-in, fust-out
basis.

The cost of inventories in governmental fimd types is recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed,
and is not recorded since any amounts are considered immaterial to the basic financial statements.

Inventories recorded in the government-wide furancial statements and in the proprietary fund tlpes are recorded as

expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses recorded on the govemment-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund
types represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018.

In the governmental fund types, however, payments for prepaid items are fully recognized as an expenditure in the fiscal
year of payment. No asset for the prepayment is created, and no expenditure allocation to future accounting periods is
required (non-allocation method). This is consistent with the basic governmental concept that only expendable financial
resources are reported by a specific frrnd.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a

sepaxate section for deferred outflows ofresources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows ofresources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for defened inflows of
resowces. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position

that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables / Payables - Short-term interfund receivables / payables represent amounts that are

owed, other thar charges for goods or services rendered to / from a particular fund in the School District and that are due

within one year. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type columns of the statement of net
position, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as

internal balances.

Capital Assets - General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds.

These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets me reported in the governmental

activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the government-

wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund statement of net position.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the

fiscal year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the date received. The School District maintains

a.capiialnation threshold of $2,000. The School Distict does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized;
the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are

not. All reported capitalassets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued) - Depreciation is computed using the sfaigtrtJine method over the following useful lives:

Descriilion

Gowrnmental
Activities

FstimatedLires

Business-Type
Activities

BtimatedLirrcs

Iand and Irrprovenrcnts
Buildin gs and Inprovenrents
Fumiture and Equipnrcnt
Vehicles

10-20yean
lG50 years

5-20 years

5-10 years

N/A
N/A

12 years
4-6 years

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and

that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the School Distict and its employees, is accrued as

the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on

a specific event that is outside the confol of the School District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in.which
such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is normally expected to be

paid with expendable available financial resources. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is

recorded as a fund liability.

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recogrition criteria have been

satisfied and are recorded as a liability until the revenue is both measurable and the School Disfict is eligible to realize the

revenue.

Accrued Liabitities and Long-Term Obligations - All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported

on the government-wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements. In general, govemmental fund payables and

accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current finanoial resources are reported as

obligations of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits and

confactually required pension confiibutions that will be paid from governrnental funds are reported as a liability in the fund

financial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable available financial

resources. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between the summation of assets and deferred outflows of resources,

and the summation of liabilities and defened inflows of resources. Net position is classified into the following three

components:

Net investment in capital assets - This component represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, net of
outstanding balances of borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - Net position is reported as resfiicted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the School District or through external resfiictions imposed by creditors, grantors or law or regulations

of other governments.

Unrestricted -Net position is reported as unresticted when it does not meet the criteria of the other two components of net

position.

It is the School District's policy to apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both

resticted and unrestricted assets are available. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Balance - The School Distict reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which the School Disfiict is bound to honor consfaints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds
can be spent. The School District's classifications, and policies for detennining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The 'onot in spendable
form" criteria includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid amounts.
The School District had no nonspendable fund balance at June 30, 2018.

Restricted - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Such
restrictions, or consfaints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (a) externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other govemments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - This fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant

to constraints imposed by formal action of the School Disfict's highest level of decision making authority, which for
the School District is the Board of Education. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the Board of Education iemoves, or changes, the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the
commitment.

Assigned - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are constained by the School Distict's intent tobe
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by either the Board of Education
or by the Business Administrator, to which the Board of Education has delegated the authority to assigt amounts to be

used for specific purposes.

Unassigned - This fund balance classification is the residual classification for the General Fund. It represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigred to specific
purposes within the general fund; The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance

amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those pu{poses, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incuned for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, it is the

School District's policy to spend resfiicted fund balances first. Likewise, when an expenditure is incuned for purposes for
which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District to
spend fund balances, if appropriate, in the following order: committed, assigned, then unassigned.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly
from the primary activity of the proprietary funds. For the School District, these revenues are sales for the food service
program. Non-operating revenues principally consist of interest income earned on various interest bearing accounts and

federal and state subsidy reimbursements for the food service program.

Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary activity of the fund.
There are no non-operating expenses.

Interfunds - Interftnd receivables and payables that arise from transactions between funds are recorded by all funds affected
by such transactions in the period in which the transaction is executed.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recently fssued Accounting Pronouncements - In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement 83, Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this Statement on the Distict's financial statements.

In January 20 17, the GASB issued Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance
regarding the identificatiort offiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities
should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identi$ing fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (l) whether a government is contolling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2)
the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identiff fiduciary component
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
this Statement on the District's financial statements.

In June 2017,the GASB issued Statement 87, Leases. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recogrrized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is

currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this Statement on the District's financial statements.

In April20l8, the GASB issued Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowing and Direct
Placements. The requirements of this Statement will improve furancial reporting by providing users of financial statements

with essential information that cunently is not consistently provided. In addition, information about resources to liquidate
debt and the risks associated with changes in terms associated with debt will be disclosed. As a result, users will have better
information to understand the effects of debt on a govenrment's future resource flows. The requirements of this Statement

are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the

adoption of this Statement on the Disfrict's financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued StatementSg,Accountingfor Interest Cost IncurredBefore the End of a Construction Period.
This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recogrized as an expense in the
period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As
a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital
asset reported in a business-type activlty or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements

prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period should be recogrized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. The

requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2019. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this Statement on the Distict's financial statements.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk refers to the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the

School District's deposits might'not be recovered. Although the School Disfiict does not have a formal policy regarding
custodial credit risk, N.J.S. A. l7:9-4letseq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public depositories

protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Unit (GUDPA). Under the Act, the

fust $250,000 of governmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC). Public funds owned by the School distict in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA. However,
GUDPA does not protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholdings of funds that pass to the School Distict relative
to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are classified as uninsured and uncollateralized. Of the School District's
amount on deposit of $4,718,237 as of June 30, 2018, $500,000 was insured under FDIC and the remaining balance of
$4,218,237 was collateralized under GUDPA.
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3. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the School District for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserye account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the School District's approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the Quality Assurance Annual Report (QAAR). Upon submission of the
LRFP to the New Jersey Deparbnent of Education, a school disfrict may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating frrnds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A school district may also appropriate
additional anounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time
or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:23A-14.1(9), the balance in the aciount cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects
in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Balance -July 1,2017
Increased by:
Transfer from Capital Projects
Interest Earned

$ 6,602

20
6,622

Decreased by:

Balance - June 30, 2018 $ 6,622

The June 30, 2018 capital reserve balance does not exceed the LRFP balance oflocal support costs ofuncompleted capital
projects.

4. ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE

Receivables at June 30, 2018 consisted of tuition fees charged other governmental units and govemmental grants. All
receivables are considered collectible in full due to the stable condition of the other governmental units, state programs and

the current fiscal year guarantee of federal funds.

Receivables as of year-end for the District's individual major and fiduciary funds, in the aggregate, are as follows:

General
Fund

$ 35,940 s 192 $
4,233

State Aid
Federal

Aid
Tuition

fees
Other

Special
Revenue

Fund
Proprietary

Funds Total

$ 36,132
22,13717,904

3,893

Total$39,83,1 S17,904

3,893
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5. CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 8, was as follows

Balance
June 30. 2017

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being
Depreciated

C ap it al Ass ets, b eing depr eci at ed:
Site and Site Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Equipment (Restated)

Totals at historical cost
Less Accumul ated D epreciat ion :

Site and Site Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Equipment (Restated)

Totals accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets, being

depreciated, net
Governmental Activities Capital

Assets, Net

$ 430,000 $

430,000

Additions Adiustments

$

Balance
June 30.2018

$ 430,000

430,000

1,232,803
25,172,745
3,319,139 47,609

47,609

(37,706\
(37,706\

1,232,803
25,172,745

3,329,042
29,724,687 734,590

(1,137,903)
(12,060,603)

(2,465,794)

Q2,568)
(602,764)
(197,516) 37 706

(1,160,471)
(12,663,367)

(2,62s.60/.\

0s.664.300) (822,848) 37 706 (16,449,442)

14,060,387 (77s,239\ 13,285,148

$ 14,490,387 $____lzz5,z19) $ (21,893) $ 13,715,148

Business-Type Activities:
C apital Assets, being depreciated:

Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Business-Type Activities Capital

Assets, Net

$$ 301,299 $
Qet,e3s)

2,283 $
(3,049)

303,582

Q94,984)

$ 9,364 $ (766) $

Depreciation expense in the amount of $822,848 was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Function Amount

$ 8,598

6. INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Instruction
General Administration
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Unallocated

Total

Food
Supplies

$ 575,994
82,285

123,427
4t 142

$ 822,848

$

_$____Lqzlg

9,743
993
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7. LONG.TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations:

Principal
Ouctariding
Julv 1.2017

Principal
Outstanding

June 30.2018

Amounts Due
Within

One Iear

760,000
56,200

5,506

Governmental Activities:

Serial Bonds Payable
Unamortized Premiums
Capital Leases Payable
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability

Additions

$ 4,725,000

30,458

$ 755,000 $
56,200
65,000

8,475,000 $

304,414

501,676
6,2t2,69s

$ 4,505,000
360,6t4
65,000

471,218
8,657,216

Reductions

2,444,521

Total Governmental Activity $ 14,059,048 $ 4,755,458 S 3,320,721 $ 15,493,785 $ 821.706

Bonds Payable - Bonds and loans are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the
District are as follows:

2003 General Obligation Bonds dated February 1,2003 in the amount of $220,000 due in annual installments
through February l, 2018 bearing an interest rate of 3.875o/o.

2006 Refunding Bonds dated December l, 2015 in the amount of $4,285,000 due in annual installments through
March 1,2024 bearing an interest rate of 4.00%o.

Debt Service Requirements

Principal and interest due on bonds outstanding is as follows:

Year Ending June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033

850,000
875,000

2,460,000
1,925,000

291,447 $
235,850
208,650
179,650
149,650
412,150
138,625

1,051,447
1,015,950
1,033,650
1,029,650
1,024,650
2,872,150
2,063,625

s $760,000
780,000
825,000

$ 8,475,000 $ 1,616,022 $ 10,091,022

As of June 30, 2018 the Distict had no authorized but not issued bonds.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the employees' salaries are paid.

8. OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2018, the District had operating lease agreements in effect for copiers.
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8. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30, 201 8, and 2017 were $64,164 and$36,229 respectively
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year E4ded Amou4t

June 30,2019
June 30,2020
Jlumie30,2021
htne30,2022

$ 30,669
17,668
2,872
1,212

Total future minimum lease payments $ s2,42t

9. PENSION PLA}IS

Description of Plans - Substantially all of the School District's employees participate in one of the following pension plans
which have been established by State statute, and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits
(Division): the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). In
addition, several School District employees participate in the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP), which is a
defured contribution pension plan. This plan is administered by Prudential Financial for the Division. Each plan has a Board
of Trustees that is primarily responsible for its administration. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State
of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits. P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,08625-0295

Teachersr Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

PIan Description - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a cost'sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, with a special funding situation, which was established on January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. l8A166.
The State of New Jersey (the "State') is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contibutions, excluding any local
employer early retirement incentive @RI) contibutions. The TPAF's designated purpose is to provide retirement, death and
disability, and medical benefits to qualified members. Membership in the TPAF is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified. The TPAF's Board of Trustees is primarily responsible for the administration of the TPAF.

Vesting and BeneJit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. l8A:66. TPAF provides retirement
death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except medical bpnefits, which vest after 25 years
of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after
three years of servipe credit, become vested for 2Yo ofrelated interest earned on the contibutions. In t}te case of death before
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts,

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition
Members who were enrolled priorto July 1,20O7
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July l,2OO7 and priorto November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 2l,20lo
Members who were eligible to ennrllon orafterMay 2l,2OlO and priorto June 28,20ll
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28,2oll

Service retirement benefits of l/55ft of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers 1 and 2 members
upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60tr of final average
salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65.

I
2
J

4
5
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or
more years of service credit, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a
fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Defened
retirement is available to members who have at least l0 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement
age for their respective tier.

Contributions - The contributionrequirements ofplanmembers are determinedbyN.J.S.A.l84:66 andrequires contibutions
by active members and confributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78,P.L.2011, effective October l,
201l, the active member contribution rate was increased to 6.5%. Anadditional 1.0olo increase is being phased-in over seven
years beginning on July l, 2012.The member contribution rate was 7.34o/o in State fiscal year 2018. The phase-in of the
additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of each subsequent State fiscal year. The State's pension
contribution is based on an actuarially determined ambunt which includes the employer portion of the normal cosf and an
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual
claims paid.

For fiscal year 2017, the State's pension confiibution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the School District and
all other related non-contibuting employers. No normal or accrued liability contribution by the School Distriet has been
required over the several preceding fiscal years. These on-behalf confibutions by the State ofNew Jersey are considered a
special funding situation, under the definition of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.

The School Distict was not required to make any contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018 because of the 100.00% special funding situation with the State of New Jersey.

Based on the most recent TPAF measurement date of June 30,2017, the State's contactually required contibution, on-.

behalf of the School Distict, to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $897,751 and was paid by April
l, 2018. School District employee confibutions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 were $669,117.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outtlow of Resources and Deferued Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, defened outflows of resources and defened inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position ofthe Teachers' Pension
and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Invesbnents are reported at fair
value.

At June 30, 2018, the School District was not required to report a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability because of a l00Yo special funding situation by the State of New Jersey.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School District recognized pension expense of $3,734,207 and revenue of $3,734,207
for support provided by the State. Although the School District does not report net pension liability or deferred outflows or
inflows related to the TPAF, the following schedule illustates the collective net pension liability and defened items and the
State's portion of the net pension liability assoeiated with the School District.
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachersf Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

The collective amounts are the total of all New Jersey local governments participating in the TPAF plan.

06/30/t7 06130/16

Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 14.160.879.257 s t7.4t4.t01.002

Collective defened inflows of resources 1r.800.239.661 134-532.594

Collective net pension liability (Non-Employer -
State of New Jersev) 67.423.605.859 79.028.907.033

State's portion ofthe net pension liability that
was associated with the School Disfrict 53.904,154 62-453.282

State's portion ofthe net pension liability that
was associated with the School District as a percentage
of the collective net oension liabiliw .0799484884% .0793900680%

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial

valuation as of July l,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation:2.25%
Salary Increases: Varies based on experience
Invesfinent Rate of Return:7.00Yo

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members reflecting

mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 1953 to 2013.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July l, 2012to June 30,2015.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan

investrnents (7.00o/o at June 30,2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the

Division of Investnents and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates ofreturn (expected returns, net ofpension plan investrnent expense and inflation) are developed

for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produced the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the

expected future real rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitigation
Cash Equivalents
U.S. Treasuries
Invesfrnent grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversified credit
Credit oriented hedge funds
Debt related private equity
Debt related real estate
Private real asset

Equity related real estate
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. developed markets equity
Emerging markets equity
Buyouts/venture capital

05.00%
05.50%
03.00%
10.00%
02.s0%
05.00%
01.00%
02.00%
01.00%
02.s0%
06.25o/o

30.00%
tt50%
0650%
08.25%

0551%
01.00%
01.87%
03.78Yo

06.82%
07.10%
06.600/o

10.63%
06.6t%
ll.83o/o
09.23%
os.t9%
09.000/o

ll.640/o
t308%

100.00%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measute the State's total pension liability was 4.25Vo as of June 30,2017 . This single

blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00Yo, and a
municipal bond rate of 3.58Yo as of June 30,2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 2O-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that confibutions from employers (State of New Jersey) will be made based on the contribution rate

in the most recent fiscal year. The state contributed 40o/o of the actuarially determined contributions. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of
current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that
date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. As
previously mentioned, TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays 100% of the School Disfict's annual

required contribution. As such, the proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2017 , the pension plans

.measurement date, attributable to the School District is $0.00, and the State of New Jersey's proportionate share of the net
pension liability, attributable to the School District, using a discount rate of 4.25o/o, as well as what the School Distict's
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point
lower (3.25Yo) or I percentage point higher (5.25Y) that the current rate:
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

17o Decrease7 6.zswl

Current
Discount Rate7 

@.zsvo)
1olo Increaset (s.zswl

District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ $ $

State's proportionate share ofthe
net pension liability associated with the
School District 64,039,826 53,904,154 45,554,344

$ 64039,826 $ 53,9M,154 $ 45,554,344

Detailed information about the pension plan's sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.

Public Employeesf Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description - The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan which was established on January l, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A. The PERS designated purpose to
is to provide retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to certain qualified members. Membership in the PERS
is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the School District, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state-administered retirement system or other state pension fund or local jurisdiction's pension fund. The
PERS's Board of Trustees is primarily responsible for the adminisfiation of the PERS.

Vesting and Bene/it Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:l5A and 43:3B. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except medical benefits, which vest after
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Definition
Members who were enrolled priorto July 1,2007
Members who were eligible to.enroll on or after July 1,2007 and prior to November 2, 2008

Members who were eligible to enroll on or afterNovember 2, 2008 and priorto May 2l,2OlO
Members who were eligible to enrollon orafterMay 2L,2Ol0 and priorto June 28,201 1

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 201 I

Tier
I
2
3

4
5

Service retirement benefits of 1/55ft of fural average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers I and 2 members

upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reachingage 62. Service retirement benefits of l/60ft of final average

salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching

age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62
with 25 or more years of service credit, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced
by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred
retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement
age for their respective tier.
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9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Contributions - The confributionrequirements ofplanmembers are determinedbyN.J.S.A43:l5A andrequires contributions
by active members and contributing employers. Members contribute at a uniform rate. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
78, P.L. 2011, effective October l,20ll, the active member confribution rate was increased to 6.5Vo. An additional 1.0%
increase is being phased-in over seven years beginning on July 1,2012. The member contribution rate was 7 .34o/o in State
fiscal year 2018. The phase-in of the additional incremental member contibution rate takes place in July of each subsequent

State fiscal year. The rate for members who are eligible for the Prosecutors Part of PERS (Chapter 336, P.L. 2001) increased
from 8.5% of brise salary to l0%. Employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate. The School
District's contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which included the normal cost and unfunded
accrued liability.

The School District's confiactually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was 13.66%o of the
School District's covered payroll. This amount was actuarially determined as the amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, including an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Based on the most recent PERS measurement date of June 30,2017, the School Disfiicts confibctually required contribution
to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $247,242 and was paid by April l, 2018. School District
employee contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were $139,940.

The School Distict is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability. The School District's
contributions, equal to the required contribution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Total'
Liability
Paidby
District

$ 2,772 $

Fiscal
Year

Normal
Contrihrtions

Accrued
Liatftity

Non
Contributory

Life
Longterm
Disatflity

2018
2017
2016

32,542
40,619
43,499

202,&9
206,7t6
20o,384

12,o5l
12,344
13,058

$$$ 250,0t4
259,679
256,941

Pension Liabtlities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Defened Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, defened outflows of resources and defened inflows of
resources related to pensions, and prnrion e*p"nr", informationabout the fiduciary net position of the PERS and additions

toldeductions from FgnS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For

this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee confiibutions) are recopized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Invesunents are reported at fair value.

At June 30, 2018, the School District reported a liability of $6,212,695 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was rneasured as of June 30, 2017 , and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension

Iiability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2016. The School Disfiict's proportion ofthe ofthe net pension

liability was based on a projection of the School District's long-term share of confiibutions to the pension plan relative to the

projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.
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Public Employeesr Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

FortheyearendedJune30,20l8,theSchoolDisfiictrecognizedpensionexpenseof$316,404. AtJune30,2018,theSchool
Distict reported a liability of $6,212,695 for its proponionate share of the PERS net pension liability and defened outflows
of resources related to PERS from the sources:

$258,159 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting ftom school district confributions
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the plan measurement date is June 30,

2017) will be recogrized as a reduction of the net liability in the year ended June 30, 2018.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in pension expense as follows:

For the year
ended:

Net Deferred
Outlows/(nflows) of

Resources
20t9 s 67.208\
2020 50.283

2021 (47.783',)

2022 (263.33Tt

2023 (39.710',)

Total $ (357.7ss\

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

Inflows of
Resources

Differences between e:oected and actual e>oerience $ 1,+6.288 $

t.251.6M t.247.055Changes ofassumptions
Net Difference between projected and actual eamings

on oension plan investments 42.304

30.529 581.465Chanees in proportion

2s8,159

District contributions subsequent to the measurement

date

$ 1.828.520Total $ 1,728,924
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Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

The amortization of the above other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be over the following number of years:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between e4ected and actual experience
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:

June 30,2014
June 30,2015 5.72

June 30,2016 5.57

June 30,2017 5.48

Changes ofassunptions
Year ofPension Plan Deferral:

June 30,2014 6.44

June 30,2015 5.72

June 30,2016 5.57

June30,20l7 - 5.48

Net Difference between projected and actual eamings
. on pension plan investrrcnts

, ""ut;,rT""il5t1* 
Dererrar:

June 3o,2ol5 : i.33
June 30,2016 5.00 

:June 30,2017 5.00

Changes in proportion
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:

June 30,2014 6.44 6.44

June 30,2015 5.72 5.72

June 30,2016 5.57 5.57

Additional Information

Collective balances at June 30,2017 and20l6 are as follows:

6/30/2017 6130120t6

Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 6,424,455,842 $ 8.68s.338.380

Collective deferred inflows of resources s 5.700.62s.981 $ 870,133,595

Collective net Dension liabiliW s 23.278.401.588 s 29.617.t31.759

School District's Proportion .0266886674% .0292304339%

55



Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

9. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate:2.25Vo
Salary Increases:

Through 2025:1.65-4.15% based on age

Thereafter: 2.65-5.15%based on age
Investment Rate of Return:7.00%o

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table for male and female

active employees. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and females. For local employees,

mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements

in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014
projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality
Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year

static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries

of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach

based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees

were based on the RP-2000 Disables Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July l, 20ll to June 30, z}l4.ltis likely that future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To
the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than

anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan

investments (7.00% at June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the

Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates ofreturn (expected retunN, net ofpension plan invesfinent expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset

class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate ofretum by weighting the expected future real rates

ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Tarqet Allocation
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitigation
Cash equivalents
U.S. Treasuries
Investment grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversified credit
Credit oriented hedge funds
Debt related private equity
Debt related real estate
Private real assets

Equrty related real estate
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. developed markets equity
Emerging markets equity
Buyouts/venture capital

05.00%
0s50%
03.00%
10.00%
02.50%
05.00%
0r.00%
02.00%
01.00%
02.s0%
06.25%
30.00%
11.50%
0650%
08.25%

05.51o/o

01.00%
01.870/o

03.780/o

06.820/o

07.l$Vo
06,60%
10.63%
06.61%
11.83%
09.23%
08.19%
09.00%
t1.64%
13.08%

17o Increase7 (6.oo0/ol

100.00%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to meuiure the State's total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30,2017 . This single
blended discount rate was based on the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a
municipal bond rate of 3.58o/o as of June 30,2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Inclex which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash
flows used to deterrnine the discount rate assumed that confibutions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contibutions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal
year. The state employer contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contibuted
100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2040. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2040, and the
municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. Tlhe

following presents the School Disfiict's proportionate share of the net pension liability measured as of June 30,2017,
calculated using the discount rate of 5.00yo, as well as what the School Disfiict's proportionate share of the net pension

liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower (4.00%) or I percentage point
higher (6.00%) that the current rat€:

17o Decrease7 
@.oovo)

Current
Discount Rate7 (s.oo%)

School Districts's proportionate share ofthe
net pension liability 8 7,707,n0 $ 6,212,695 $ 4,967,529

Pension Plan/iduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits frnancial report.
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Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension plan which
was established on July 1,2007, underthe provisions of Chapter 92,P.L.2007 andChapter 103, P.L. 2007 (N.J.S.A.43:15C-
1 et. seq), and expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008 and Chapter I, P.L. 2010. The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program Board'oversees the DCRP, which is administered for the Divisions of Pensions and Benefits by
Prudential Financial. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries, with a tax-sheltered, defined
contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are
established by N.J.S.A. 43:l5C-l et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with Chapter 92,P.L,2007
andChapterl03,P.L.200T,planmembersarerequiredtoconfiibute5.5%oftheirannualcoveredsalary. Inadditiontothe
employee contributions, the School DisfricJ's contibution amounts for each pay period are fansmitted to Prudential
Financial not later than the fiffh business day after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay period.

The School District's contributions, equal to the required contribution for each fiscal year, were as follows:
Paid by

Employer School
Year Liabilitv District

$ $19,696
19,957
18,943

IO. POST.RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Description of Plan - Plan description and benefits provided P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teacherso Pensions

and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement

medical benefits for those state employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability
retirement. P .L. 2007 , c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF

and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical
benefits for retired state employees and retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is funded through

contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a
pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attibutable to P.L. 1992, c,126, which provides employer paid health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (APB) who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service (GASB Cod. Sec. 2300.106(g). The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found
in New Jersey Statutes Annotated , Title 52, Article 17 .25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the

program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Adminisfrative Code.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.

Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

TPAF participant retirees :

As of June 3O,2Ol7,there were 112,966 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the State

contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf.
PERS participant retirees:

The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal
Year 20L7.

2018
2017
2016

19,696
19,957
18,943
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer contributions to
OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA's proportionate share percentage determined under
paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any portion
of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note
information is reported at the State's level and is not specific to the school disfrict. Note that actual numbers will be published
in the NJ State's CAFR (https://www.ni.eov/treasury/omb/publications/archives.shtrnl)

Actuarial assumptions and other imputes - The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of the June 30, 2017 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30,20l6,which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. The total nonemployer OPEB liability
as of June 30,2016 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,2016. The actuarial assumptions vary for each
plan member depending on the pension plan the member enrolled in.

This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 250%

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS

Salary Increases
Through 2026

Thereafter

1.55 - 4.55Yo

based on years

of service

2.00 - 5.41yo

based on years

of service

2.r5 - 4.I5yo
based on age

3.15 - 5.l5Yo
based on age

2.lO - 8.98Yo

based on age

3.IO - 9.98Yo

based on age

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee MalelFemale mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.

Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female mortality
table with fully generational improvement projections fiom the central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality
was based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement
projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies for
the periods July l, 2012 - June 30, 2015, July 1, 2010 - June 30,2013 and July l,20ll - June 30,2014 for TPAF, PFRS,

and PERS, respectively.

Health Care Trend Assumptions - For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization @PO) medial benefits, this amount

initially is 5.9o/o and decreases to a 5.0Yo long-term fend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits,

the trend rate is 4.5o/o. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the fiend rate is initially 5.9% and

decreases to a 5.0o/o long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial frend rate is 10.5%

decreasing to a 5.0Yo long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the tend rate is 5.0%,

The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5o/o and will continue in all future years.

Discount Rate - The discount rate for June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 3.58% and2.85Yo, respectively. This represent the

municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond lndex,

which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Retirees' Share of BeneJit Related Costs - Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postetirement
medical coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28,2011 will be required to pay a percentage of
the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit.
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Balance as of June 30, 2106 Measurement Date
Changes fortheyears'

Service Cost
Interest
Changes ofbenefit terms
Differences between eryected and actual e>perience
Changes in assurrptions
Cross Benefit Payments
Contributions from the Non-enployer
Contributions from the Member
Net Investment Incorrp
Admins itrative E>pens e

Net Changes

Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

r0. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The percentage of the premium for which the retirees will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level ofcoverage.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State ofNew Jersey -
TotalOPEB

Liability
$ 57,831,784,184

$ 2,39r,878,884

1,699,441,736

Q,086,599,129)
(l,vI:2,412,566)

N/A
45,748,749

N/A
N/A

$ (4,191,942,326)

Baliance atM/3O/2O17 $ 53,639,841,858

Changes of assumpticins and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85% as of June 30,2016 to 3.58% as

ofJune 30,2017.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB
liability of the State as of June 30,2017 for school board retirees, as well.as what the State's total OPEB liability for school

board would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage -point lower or lpercentage-point higher than
the current discount rate: 

current
l7o Decrease DiscountRate 1%o Increase

Q.58Vo\ (3.s8% ) (4.s8o/ol

Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) S 63,674,362,200 $ 53,639,841,858 $ 45,680,364,953

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcqre cost trend rates - The following presents the total
nonemployer OPEB liability of the State as of June 30,2107, as well as what the State's total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are l-percentage-point lower or l-percentage point higher than the

current healthcare cost trend rates:

l9lo Decrease

Itrealthcare
Cost Trend

Rates 17o Iucrease

Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) S M,ll3,58/,,56O $ 53,639,841,858 $ 66,290,599A57

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB: For the year ended
June 3 0, 2017 , the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $3, I 70,054 determined by the State as the total OPEB
liability for benefits provided through a defured benefit OPEB plan that is not administered through a trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75 and in which there is a special funding situation.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the school district's proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is zero, there is no
recognition ofthe allocation ofproportionate share ofdefened outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources.

At June 30,2017, the State reported defened outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to retired school
employee's OPEB from the following sources:

06/30117

Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 99.843.255

Collective defened inflows of resources 6.443.6t2.287
Collective net OPEB liability (Non-Employer -

State of New Jersey) 53.639.841.858
State's portion of the net OPEB liability that

was associated with the School Disffict 43-144-768

State's portion of the net OPEB liability that
was associated with the School District as a percentage
of the collective net OPEB liabili8 0.08%

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Chanses in oronortion $ 99.843.255 $ 9,843,255

Changes of as surnptions 6.343,769,032

Total $ 99.843.255 $ 6,443,612,287

Amounts reported as defened outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to retired school employee's

OPEB will be recogrized in OPEB expense as follows:

For the year
ended:

2018 s (742.830.097)

2019 (742.830,W7')

2020 042.830.WT,
2021 Q42"830.@7\
2022 (742,830.0.E7')

Therafter 0-629-618.547\

Total s 6.343.769.032\

Detailed information about the pension plan's sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits frnancial report.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

11. ON-BEIIALF PAYMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the School Disfiict has recognized as revenues and expenditures on-behalfpayments
made by the state for normal retirement costs, post-retirement medical costs and long term disability insurance related to
TPAF, in the fund statements, The amounts recognized as revenues and expenditures in the fund financial statements for
normal costs, post-retirement medical costs and long term disability insurance were $1,226,496, 5792,167, and $1,219,
respectively. In addition, $653,971 on-behalf payments were made by the state for the employer's share of social secwity
contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

12. RISKMANAGEMENT

The Disfict is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and desfiuction of assets; errors and

omissions; employee health and accident claims; and natural disasters. The District has chosen to purchase insurance to

fiansfer risk to outside parties.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including property,

liability, employee health, accident insurance and public official surety bonds. Settled clairns resulting from these risks have

not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years.

A complete schedule ofinsurance coverage can be found in the "Statistical Section" ofthis report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment

Compensation Insurance under the "Business Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the Disfiict is required to reimburse

the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the

State. The Disfrict is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State'

The following is a summary of Disfiict confibutions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid

and the endrng balance of the District's expendable trust fund for the current and prior four years:

District Employee Interest Amount
Contributions Contributions Earned Reimbursed

Ending
BalanceFiscal Year

2017-2018
2016-2017
2015-2016
20t4-201s
2013-2014

$$$

10,000
5,280

10,000

31,531 $
33,424
31,660
30,511
29,852

t2,494 $
22,092
11,336
50,342
19,306

JJJ

428
283
165
r55

146,880
127,510
115,750
85,143
99,529

13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The School Distict offers its employees a choice of various defened compensation plans created in accordance with Internal

Revenue Code Section 4030) and 457. The plans, available to all pennanent School District employees, permit participants

to defer a portion of their current salary to future years. Participation in the plans is optional. The defened compensation is

not availafle to the participants until termination, retiremen! death, or an unforeseeable emergency occurs. The plan assets

are held in trust for the benefit of the employee and are administered by a third pariy therefore they are not reflected on the

financial statements of the School District.

14. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School Disfict accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated.Absences", A liability for

compensatid absences atfibutable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the

control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

14. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

School District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the School District's
personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The School District's policy permits
employees to accumulated unused sick leave and carry forward the futl amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement
employees shall be paid by the School District for the unused sick leave in accordance with the School Distict's agreements
with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrued to the employees. As
of June 30, 2018, the liability for compensated absences in the governmental fund was $501,676.

15. INTERFTIND RECEIVABLES AI\D PAYABLES

Interfund receivables/payables are recorded to cover temporary cash shortages and/or timing differences in the respective
funds. There are no interfund balances that axe not expected to be repaid by June 30,2019. The following interfund balances
were recorded on the various balance sheets as ofJune 30, 2018:

Fund

General
Special Revenue
Fiduciary

Interfund
Receivable

Interfund
Pavable

$ I1,445 $
5,445
6,000

$ 11,445 $ 11,445

16. CONTINGENCIES

The School District participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received
from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government.

If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the School Disfiict may be required to
reimburse the grantor government.

At June 30, 2018, significant amounts ofgrant expenditures have not been audited by the granting agency, but the School
Disfiict believes that disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on any
ofthe individual funds or the overall financial position ofthe School District. Additionally, unearned revenues are recogrized
in those funds that have received grant monies in advance of future, reimbursable expenditures.

17. TAXABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tan abatement is an agreement between a

government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action tlat contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the
government or its citizens. School disticts are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements.

However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements,

and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement

ugrr"-rntr, those agreements will not directly affect the school district's locil tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and
N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the

school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their minimum tax levy
using the required local share provisions at N.J.S.A. l8A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting from the municipality or
county having entered into a ta,x abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of
required local share performed by the New Jersey Deparhent of Education based upon disfrict properly value and wealth.
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17. TAX ABATEMENTS (Continued)

The Township of Hanison (Municipality) provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New Jersey State Statutes.
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-l et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property ta(es can and are abated. The exemptions
provided by the Municipality are for affordable housing and other permitted purposes. Taxes abated include municipal, local
school, and county taxes.

The assessed value on these tax exemption properties amounted to $20,931.700 which would have resulted in 2017 ta:<es

billed in full of $591,321. A portion of the $591,321 abatement would have been allocated to the District.

18. DEFICIT UNASSIGNED FT]ND BALANCE

The School District has a deficit unassigned fund balance of $202,620, in the General Fund as of June 30, 2018 as reported
in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A.18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment
is not made until the following school budget year, school districts must record the delayed one or more June state aid
payments as revenues, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority for
school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovemmental fransactions, GASB Statement
No. 33 requires that recogrition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmety, i.e., if one government
recogrizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the June state aid payments in
the subsequent fiscal year, the School Disfiict cannot recognize the June state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements

until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state aid payment, the general
and special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the School District is facing financial diffrculties.
Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unassigred general fund balance that is reported as a direct result from a

delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute

and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The School District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $202,620
is equal to or less than the June state aid payment.

19. DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

AsofJune30,2018,adeficitof$T,400,93TexistedintheUnrestrictedNetpositionoftheGovernmentalActivities. A
reconciliation of Unreserved Fund Balance reported on Exhibit B-l to Unrestricted Net position reported on Exhibited A-l
as follows:

Balances June 30,2018
Fund Balance @eficit)
@xclusive of Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds):

Fund Balance - Unassigned
Liabilities:

Accrued Interest Payable
Net Pension Differences
Compensated Absences

$ (202,620)

(126,191)
(6,570,450)

(50t,676)

Unrestricted Net position (Deficit) g (7,400,937)

20. FUIID BALANCES

RESTNCTED

As stated in Note 1, the restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Such
restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the following: (a) extemally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or O) imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation. Specific restrictions of the School Distict's fund balance are summarized as follows:
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20. FUND BALAIICES (Continued)

General Fund:

Excess Surplus - In accordance with N.J.S.A. l8A:7F-7, as amended, the desigration of restricted fund balance -
excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school disfiicts are required to restict general fund,
fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted
fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2018 is $664,584
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting (Exhibit C-l). Additionally, 8624,982 of excess fund balance
generated during the 2016-2017 fiscal year has been restricted and designated for utilization in the 2018-2019
budget.

Capital Reserve - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the capital reserve account is $6,622 and is resficted for
future capital outlay expenditures for capital projects in the School Disffict's approved Long Range Facilities Plan.

Maintenance Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the maintenance reserve account is 5553,761.
These funds are restricted for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with tlre Educational
Facilities Construction and Financing Act (EFCFA) (N.J.S.A. l8A:7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004, c.73 (Sl70l).

ASSIGNED

As stated in Note 1, the assigred fund balance classification includes amounts that are consffained by the School Distict's
intent tobe used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Specific assignments ofthe School District's
fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund:

Other Purposes - At June 30, 2018 the School District has $495,834 of encumbrances outstanding for purchase

orders and confiacts signed by the School District, but not completed, as of the close of the fiscal year.

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The School Disfiict has appropriated $26,931 anticipated
revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

UNASSIGNED

As stated in Note l, the unassigred fund balance classification represents fund balance that has not been resfricted,

committed, or assigned to specific purposes. The School District's unassigned fund balance is summarized as follows:

General Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the unassigned fund balance of the general fund was a deficit of ($202,620). The

deficit is a result of the delay in the recording of the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year (See Note 18).

Capital Projects Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the unassigred fund balance of the capital projects fund was 90,977.15.
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules



TOWNSEIP OT EARRISON SCIOOL DIIITTICT
Eugctrry Comprrirol Schcdulc

Gcnsd Frtrd
trlic.l Ysr Erdcd Ju!. 30, 20lt

Origi!rl
Budel

s t2,234,206.00

23,000.00

57,000.00

50,000.00

2.OO

8.00

40,000.00

Brdget

tnagfcr
Find

Eudgct

s 12,234,206.00

23,000.00

57,000.00

50,000.00

2.N
E.00

,10,000.00

5,034,332.00

188,49t.00

800,303.00

107,20t.00

13,560.00

13,560.00

13,580.00

Ascrl

s t2,234,206.W

97,5t5.00

t64,575.69

76,062.00

19.88

2,473.73

l3 t,530.49

c-l

Verictrcr
tritrrl to
Actml

74,5t5.00

1o7,575.69

26,04.N
r7.88

2,46s.n
91,530.49

302,t66.79

14,750.00

21,t90.00

5,768.00

1,226,496.N

792,tet.00
1,2t9.00

653,970.73

2.715.5@.n

s 3.0t1.727.52

REVENUES:

Locsl Sourcs:
Local Tu Lerry

Tuition - IndMdurls

Tuition - Other LEA's

Tmrportali.on Fa€N

tntcrcst Ermed oa Capitat Reffi Funds

Irts6t Esrned or Maintailce Reserre Fundi

Misellireour

Totrl - lrcal Sm€!

St|tc Sourc€s:

EquElization Aid
Tmsportation Aid

Spcial Educuion Aid

security Aid
Extrnordimry Aid

PARCC Readinqs Aid
Per Pupil Growth Aid

Prcfessional Leaming Comunity Aid

Nonpublic School Tmsport tiotr CosE - Othcr State Aid

Led Testing for Sehools Aid

On-Bebrlf TPAF Pmion Contributiom (mn{udgotcd)

On-Behalf TPAF Post Rctircmmt Medical (mn-budgpted)

On-Behalf TPAF - LTDI (non-budgcted)

Rcimburscd TPAF Socisl Security Contrib.(mn-budgstcd)

t

l2,4m,2l6.OO 12,1,04,216.00 12,706,382.79

5,034,332.00

188,49t.00

800,303.00

t07,20r.00

t3,560.00

t3,560.00

t3,5E0.00

5,034332.00
. tEE,491,00

Eoq303.oo

102z)1.00

14750.00

t3,560.00

t3,560.00

13,580.00

21,190.00

5,768.00

t,226,496.@

792,167-00

t,219.00

6$,ry0.73

Toul - State sourccE

Totrl Rdcnua

6,17t,027.00

$ 18,575,243.00 S

6,171,o27.00

_!_l!fls,r43.99_

t29,637.00

300.00

37q500.00

4,356,2m.OO

90q000.00

8,886,587.73

s 2t,592,970,52

EXPEITIDITURDS:

Currctrt Expcnsc:

Regultr Prcglm - lnstruclion:

Psohool:
Srlsig ofT€achen

Other Solarier for Instruclion

Salaris of Teachm:

Kindergancn

Gradd l-5
Grads G8

Regula Pregmi - Home INtsuctiotr:

Saluies ofTeachw
Regulr Progms - UndistntutEd lNtruction:

Purchued Eduetional Swices
Purchscd Tchnioal Swis
Other Purchrs€d Scilic€i
Rentals

General Supplia
TstbooLs
oths objecrs

E,s00.00 8,500.00

!,000.00 - 1,000.00

44,653.00 - ,14,653.00

407,t?7.61 4,000.00 4ll,En.6t
t36,182.72 t7,935.00 154,117.72

, 4,t00.00 , 4,100.00

12t,472.00 6,380,905.33 6,28E,755.83

$t

377,000.00

4,364,220.@

920,000.00

t29,637.OO

300.00

(6,500.00)

(8,000.00)

(20,000.00)

12E,410.t9

212.85

t6s,l74.u
4,355,968.47

895,388.37

I,ilt.25

785.16

41,E14.43

366,0E2.47

133,t08.60

1,226.81

t7.15

5,325.96

251.53

4,6r 1.63

6,68E.75

2t4.84

2,83t.5?

45,795.14

21,o09.12

4,100.00

Total Rcguhr Pngrrmr 4259,4t3.33 92,149.50

See Mmsgqncnt's Dircussion and Analysis section of this report for orplanctim of sig{iffot budC* vrimces, original and final



TOWNSEIP OT f,ARRISON SCEOOL DISTRICT
Bugetrrt Comprrim! Schcdulc

Ccncnl truod

Fisl Ycrr Erdcd Junc 30, 201t

Origind
Budlct

$ t,007,780.00

t6t,694.00

3,000.00

2,E00.00

r5,193.20

20,025.@

B[dgct

In4Sln

Vrrlrnc
trlod to

Acturl

c-r

9,987.32

533.O7

3,000.00

t,673.34

3,33 t.45

4,388.14

EXPENDITURES (CONTI'):
Currctrt Erpcnrc (Cotrt'd):
. Sp*id Edwation - Imtructim:

Rcsoure RoomtRsore Cqrtq:
Salsies ofTerchers

Othcr Salrries for Instruction

Gucd Supplier

T*tbooks
Othtr Objectr

Total Rercurcc Room/Rorure Center

A[tirn:
Salrris ofTerchss
Odter Sdri$ for Instrucliotr

Pwhascd Educ|tionsl Sfl is
Genml Supplieg

Tqtbmkr
othqobjsts

Totgl Autism

Prcsohool Disabilitier:

Saluis ofTachec
Other Salsie for Instruction

Prchas€d Bducrtional Swics
Genual Supplic
Te'ilbookt

Other Objegts

Total Preschool Diirbilities

Hotn€ Imtruction:

Saluis of Twhm
Oths Saluis for lnstructlon

Purchmed Educational Snis

Total Home lnstruation

(44,335.00)

(3q000.00)

Finel
Bud!.t

$ 963,445.00

t38,694.00

3,000.00

2,800.00

10,193.20

20,025.00

210,609.00

259,799.00

r,785.00

5,564.00

2,000.00

a@d

t 953,4s7.6E $

138,t60.93

1,126.6
6,861.75

15,636.86

197,2U.t5
2t8,t92.t4

1,048,60

3,884.89

1,324.08

150.00

442.563.86

t,2t7.492.20

(s,000.00)

1l< I,138,157.20 l,il5,23.88 22,9t3.32

209,r09.00

279,799.OO

1,7E5.00

5,664.00

2,000.@
50.00

1,500.00

(20,000.00)

(100,00)

100.00

13,344.85

20,906.86

7t6.40

1,679.r r

675.92

37,343.t4498,407.00 fl8.500.00)

150.00

479,9Vt.00

(e6,437.00) 7t,lEt.00
7t,000.00

(5,376.00)

s,?76.OO ,02t.2s

- 

2S,o2r.2s

167,6tE.00

71,000.m

3,600.00

z,roooo

69,1 12.35

69,361.05

2,06t.65

t,63t.95

u9.318.N

(3,600.00)

(7.100.00)

fl07-137.00) t42,18t.0o 138,473.40 3,707.60

5,376.00

20,645.25

26.02t.25

2,881.79

i,tisr.tg

1,699,162.93

23,t39.46

Totd Spccisl Educrtion - INtruction 1.991 ,238.45 1,786,266.45

-

87,1O3.52

See Managerneat's Discrssion ud Analysis seotion ofthis report for €relanrtion ofsieni{Eat budf* vadances, original and final



TOWNSEIP OT EARRISON SCEOOL DISTruCT
Bugctrrf Comparlior Schcdulc

Gcocrrl Fuld
FbCl Ycrr Endcd Jutrc 30, 20lt

Originrl
Eudlct

Budget

Tnnrfs
tr'lnd

lrdgg

5E6,250.00

224,6@.00

t,580.00
600_00

Vrrirne
I'insl to

Actud

c-l

6,028.80

5,217.36

316.74

441.8

EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):
Curr.rt Erpctrtc (Contrd):

Basic Skills/Rilodial - Inrtruction:

Seleis ofTeachen

Other Salrriet for Instruction

Gmeral Supplieg

Tqtbooks

$ 645,500.00

239,600.00

1,630.00

600.00

(5e,2s0.00) $
(t5,ooo.oo)

(50.00)

Ac&d

$ 5Eq22r.20

2t9,1t2.64
1,263.26

t58.77

t

Totrl Basio Skillr/Rmedial - lnsruction

Bilingusl - Instruction:

. SdsisofTerchm
Guenl Suppliw

Tqtbook!

Tobl Bilingual - Inrtruction

Oths SupplemqtavAt-Rbk Prcgm:
Saluic of Rcading Spciolictr

Totrl Inrtruction

Undbtributed Expenditurce - Instruction:

Tuition - Other LEAr Wthin Ststc - Rcgulsr

Tuition - Other LEA8 Wthin Strtc - Sp*ial
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools

Tuition to Private Schools for the Hatrd. - Within Ststc
Tuition - Oths

Total Undistsibutcd Expmdituru - lNtructim

Undistribuled E eenditurcs - Attmdre:
Oths Purchared Servis

Undistributed Expmditur€c - Hslth Swics;
Saluis
Puchssed Prcfessionsl snd Tchniasl Sflicc
Supplics md Matcials

Totsl Undistlibuted ExpmdituH - Health Swics

Undistributed Expenditures - Otho Support Swices -
Sadmts - Related Swices:

Sslsi.s
Purchased Prcfcsional - Eduetional Soies
Suppli* and Mataials

Tot.l Undirtributed Expeditures ' Othc Suppon Swios -
Studetrt! - R€lat€d Swice!

Undistributcd Expndituros - Othc Support Servicos -
Snrdmu - Regulr:

Salarier ofOths Prcfesiond Staff

Furchsced Prcfessional - EducE iond Swices
Supplies md Materidr
Otho Objectr

Total Undistributcd Expmdituffi - Oths Suppon Scili6
Studcn$ - Regulr

887,330.@ (74,300.00) E13,030.00 801,02s.87 12,004.13

38,475.00 500.00

80,509.00

9,256,n6.7E (15?,300.00) 9,099,676.7E

3E,600.00

t25.00

38,509.84

250.00 

-

, 38,975.00 38,509.84

80,225.00

t,9o7,679.47

38,100.00

125.00

250.00

500.00 90.r6
t25.00

250.00

465.16

275.0O

191,997.11

34,364.00 34,364.00 34,364.OO

59,06t.00

75,000.00

(34,364.00)

(12,000.00)

u,697.OO

63,000.00

t7E,737.5E

E,67t.00

10,262.42

u,6n.@
63,000.00

134,061.00 02,000.00) . t22,O61.@ 34,364.00

13,000.00 12,760.00

87,697.00

13,000.00 24/J.0O

15r,500.00

9,67E.00

8.500.00

27,237.58

0,000.00)
t.762.42

t76,596.73

7,545.00

9,782.M

t ,923.79

2,140.85

I,133.00

480.36

t6q678.00 28,000.00 197,678.00 3,7s4.21

323,250.00

86,656.00

6,676.00

(2,E00.00)

(r,e00.00)

4,700.00

32q450.00

84,756.00

320,079.00

80,329.46

371.00

4,426.54

5,989.2311,376.00 5,386.n

4t6.582.00 416,582.00 405,795.2J 10,786.77

227,230.@

300.00

1,425.00

228-955.O0

2n,2i0.@
300.00

1,425.00

225,88/.76 t,345.4
2s0.00

t,154.76

50.00

70.u

228,955.00 226,005.00 2,950.00

See Managcment's Diroussion and Analysis section of this rcport for explantion of siffimt budgct varialces, original and final



TOWNSEIP OF EARRIIION SCEOOL DIIITRICT
Eug.trt ComprrLou Schcdllc

Gcnml Fuad
Ftrel Yor Erdcd Junc 30, 20lt

Origind

lcdss
Eudgra

Tnnsfm

Vuiucc
trlnrl to

Aqtsd

c-r

5,952.77

E5.00

0.05

6,801.4?

2,65s.12

I,13t.43
5l 1.00

EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

Currcnt Erpenrc (Cort'd)3

Undiltribut€d &.peditur€r - Othq Support Snis -
Studmt3. Specirl:

Saluies ofotler Prcfesrional Sotr
Salarics ofSecrotarial md Clsicd Asistsnts

Other SElrris
Purchscd PrcfescionEl - Educational Seryicer

Misccllanoous Purchu€d Servis
Supplies md Materials

OthrObjcrs

Total Undistributcd ExpndituH - Other Suppon SeryiceE

Studflts - Sptri8l

Undi*ributed Expmd. - Imp. of Irotruction SniG:
Ealuies of Supwinn of In*ruction
Salsiei ofOthq Professional Staf
Sdui$ of Swretri8l atrd Clsicd A$istants

. Oths Salric
Purcharcd Prcfe$ional - Bluotional Servicer

OtlrerPurchuod Swiec
Supplie anrt Matcialr
Miscellmms Expcnditurcr

Total Undistributed Expendituru - Imprw. oflruu. Seryis

Undistributed ExpendituH - Eduetional Media/Libnry:

Purchsed Pro&sional - Eduetional Swier
Supplior ind Matsi.ls

Total Undigributcd Expmd. - Edu*tional Media/Libnry

Undisributcd Experditurc! - hstructiond St.f Tnining
Salsis of OtberProfwimal Staf
Purchas€d Prcfwiond . F:lucationsl Sflic€s
Other Purcharcd Ssviccs
Mscellmous Expmditures

Total Undistributed B$end. - Instructioaal StatrTraining

UndiEtributed ExpendihlBs - Support Swiccg - Gen. Admin.:

Sdeid
LegEl Swier
Audit Fst
Architet/Enginea Swicer
Othcr Purchsed Prcfcsionsl Sflioeg
ComdcarionJTclgphonc
BOE Oths Purchrsd Silics
Oth€r Purchar€d Sailics
Supplies ud Mrtsisls
lvfisllreou Expmditus
Judgments

BOEMmbffihip Dus md Fe

Undistributcd Expcnditures - Suppon Sfl. - School Adnin.:
Salri* ofPrincipalr

Saluieo of S*rarial md Clerical Assirt$ilr
Purchr!€d Prcf$siotral md Tehniel Scrvis
Oths Purchu€d Sflis3
Supplies ud Itlateriak

lvtirellueour Expoditurec

Totsl Undistributed E e€nd. - Support Sw. - Schml Admin.

$ 223,500.00 $

42,057.@

6,143.00

37,430.00

9,004.00

4,0s0.00

900.00

(2,500.00) $

(r,300.00)

trlnrl

Eslcal

22t,000.00

44057.00

6,143.00

37,430.00

7,704.00

4,050.00

219,683.00

163,025.00

35,839.00

700.00

I,n8.N
2,t22.00

, 2,300.00

425,447.00

&$d

2t5,047.23

4t,972.00

6,t42.95

30,628.53

5,048.EE

2,9t8.57

2t9,683.00

162,608.4q

34,725.63

700.00

t,202.t6

\969.n
1,464.00

422,353.86

$

323,084.00

900.00 289.00

(3.800.00) 3t9,284.00 392,U7.16 t7,216.U

219,683.00

t60,525.00

35,839.00

2,500.00 416.60

1,n3.37

700.00

2,100.00

1,600.00

4500.00

(322.O0)

522.M

57s.t4

152.03

t36.00

422,94't.@ 2,500.00

503.00

(1,5r8.00)

t,015.00

t,755.34

20,169.63

t7,358.00

2,4t2.00

10,650.00

1,755.34

t7,506.70

19,262.U

17,357.44

9,6U.E9

3.093.14

4662.9t

0.56

2,482.00

1,025.1 I

2,600.00

tt,ou.97
(t44.6)

2"t44.6

20,624.97 . ,1,300.00 21,924.97

16,855.00

4,000.00

9,635.00

30,490.00 30,4 0.00 26,982.3? 1<M67

186,762.00

47,59t,t6
t6,655.00

5,000.00

38,3r5.00

4,000.00

ta807.00

4s00.00
10,700.00

l0r0o0.0o

26,76t.OO

(6,761.00)

t86,762.N
57,591.16

16,855.00

31,76t.00

31,554.00

4,000.00

t2,807.00

4,500.00

rq700.00

t,000.00

364,530.1f

186,762.00

53,756.36

l6,Eoo.oo

3t,7@.O7

28,529.58

2,105.12

I l,8t5.l I
1,9R.09

4,274.O0

6,636.61,

345,012.54

3,834.80

55.00

0.93

3,OU.42

1,294.28

99t.E9

2,526.91

6,426.W

r.363.398,000.00

Total Undistriburcd Exp6d. - Support Sflics - Gen. Admin. 334,530.16 30,000.00 t9,5t7.62

413,230.00

t22,600.00

13,300.00

6,900.00

t3,30t.00
143s0.00

(2oo.oo)

(1,00o.00)

51,200.00

5,000.00

433,030.00

r21,600.00

64,500.00

6,900.00

18,301.00

12.350.00

43q998.95

I 18,150.26

10,r57.83

5,637.72

9,157.73

9,038.E0

2,03t.05

1,449.74

54,342.t7

t:,262.28

9,143.27

3,31 1.20

601,68t.00 55,000.00 65tt6*t ()(t 581 l4t 29 7351971

See Managenent's Discrssion and Analysis section ofthis reaort for €xplanation ofsigi{cont budSet vrisroes, original md final



TOWNSEIP OF EANRISON SCEOOL DISTRICT
Eugrtrtt Comprrlron Schcdulc

Grncnl Fund

Fircrl Ysr Erdcd Junc 30, 2018

Origiul Budgct
TntrlfeflBudsrt

Vrrirtre
Find to

a@d

c-1

t,577.95

1,532.15

566.98

66,6.33

292.65

498.96

EXDENDITURES (CONTID):
Curot E!p.!rc (Cortrd):

Undistributed E'efld. - Cemrat Swis:
Sdtries

Purchrsed Prcfersionrl Senics
OthcPurphared Swis
Supplier 4nd Mareialr
Inttrst on Las Purche Agrmatg
Imffit on Bond Anticipation Notcs

Mscellmeous Expf, diture3

$ 302,046.6 $
27,t26.N

3,600.00

6,000.00

4qt7l.0o

s.500.00

rqs00.00

(r,s00.00)

(39,708.00)

21,708.00

Firrl
Budlct

$ 302,046.00

46,626.@

3,@0.00

4,500.00

1,t63.00

21,708.00

. 5,500.00

385,143.00

Acttr.l

$ 300,468.05

45,093.t5

3,0$.4
3,833.67

870.35

21,708.00

5,001.04

3E0.007.9tTotsl Undistributcd Exp6d. - CflEd Swi@3

Undisttibuted Expmd. - Administative Information Tmhnologr:
Saluis
Purchsed Pni&sional md T@hnicnt Swi6
OthcPurchued Servicor

Sup'pliq snd Matsials

Total Undi*ributed Expmd, - Admin. Info. Twhnologry

Undistriburcd Expendiurcs - Allowble Maintsrne
of Plant Sfli6:

Clmill& Repair md llsintme Swiceg
Lead Terting

Omcd Supplier

Total Undistributed Expe[diture3 - Allowrble Msint.
ofPlEot SeryieE

Undistributed Epondrturer - Othr Opcrotion srd Maint.

ofPlmt Scrvico:

Saluier

Salsis of Non-hstructional Aidcs

Oths Purghscd Prcperty Sfliaes
htutane
Mircelluous Purchrscd Servicar

Gcacrrl Supplier

Natunl Gag

Eletdcity
Oth{ Objects

Undktributed Eeenditures - Stud$t Tmsport&tion Sflie3:
Salui$ of Norlrotrucrional Aide!
Srlarier for Pupil Trmsportrtion (Bctwrd Home

md Schol) - Regulr
Srlrie for Pupil Tmponstion (Betwm Hlmc

lnd School) - Spsid
Othcr Prcfo$iond and Tchnical Swioes
Cleuing, Repair urt Mainteme Sflier
Aid In Lieu of Tmponatioa
CoilrEcl€d Sw. - (BetwmHome ud Schml) -Joint

Agrmmts
Contlicled Serv. - (Sp. Ed. Studentc) - Joint Agreem€[lts

Contracte{ Seru. - (Sp. Ed. Students) - ESCa & CTSA!
Mrcellcnaous Purchtr€d SwiG$ - Trsportation
SuppliF ud ltstsialg
Miscellmour Expendituru

Tobl Undiltribut€d Exp€nd. - Surdert Tmsportation Sfl.

385,143.00 5.135.02

t35,000.00

4,000.00

70,t53-75

t4,506.14

2,8/5.50

59,200.00

954.50

137,710.50

3,960.00

44,485.O?

135.00

40.00

85,068.72

33,890.80

293,859.89 63,000.00

137,845.50

4,000.00

t29,553.75

85,460.64

356,859.89

26t,098,95

82,494.94

256,300.00

28,000.00

5t7,398.95

I 10.494.94

284,300.00 627,893.89 436,987.7t

51,569.84

237,725.37 I 19,t34.52

35q957.04 166,441.91

86,030.6? , 244&.n

190,906.18343,593.89

576,799.N

19E,717.00

34,757.E8

I t5,000.00

t3,980.00

80,000.00

t26,670.76

402,238.31

4,000.m

(24,000.00)

(r 1,000.00)

t,000.00

0,000.00)

(2q000.00)

(2q000.00)

(40,000.00)

5s4799.00

tE7,717.00

35,757.88

I 14,000.00

t3,980.00

60,000.00

t06,670.76

362,23E.1t

4,000.00

552,273.50

t82,874.22

33,32E.t9

I 11,938.06

1q329.@

53,2t4.41

95,10t.72

350,353.13

577,682.E7

95,90.t0
5,752.@

97,t56.86

54,4t4.25

2,0si.47

525.50

4,t42.7E

2,429.69

4Mt.94
3,65t.00

6 7t5.59

l r,567.04

I 1,885.t8

t,942.53

Totrl Undistribut€d Expodituree - Othcr Operation md Meint.
ofPlut Swis t,552,r62.95

Urdktributed Expcnditures - Crc & Upkep of Grourlr:
Cleaning Repair md Maintgnance Swier 64000.00

Uodistributed Expqditure! - Swity
Clming, Rcpair ud Mrintonane Swic€$ t8,200.00

(l r5,000.00) 1,437,162.95 t,39t,471.70

(26,000.00) 36,000.00 34,411.09

36,000.00 54,200.00 31,005.00

t40,000.00 1340?5.70

45,691.25

1.5t8.9r

23.195.00

140,000.00

606,000.00

r64000.00
q200.00

105,000.00

50,000.00

48,000.00

44,5@.00

t96,500.00

3,800.00

(15,000.00)

(5s,000.00)

(s,000.00)

4,415.00

1,067.00

(r5,000.00)

(33,482.00)

59t,000.00

t07,000.00

9,200.00

10q000.00

54415.00

29,500.00

163,018.00

3,800.00

49,067.O0 49,066.60 0.40

28,578.80

ts5,415.72

(t 18.000.00) t,u7,o00.oo I,198,693.90 4E,306.I0

7,9U.30

13,317.13

1t,079.90

3,44E.00

2,843.14

o.75

92t.20

7,6C2.2E

I,169.00

1.365.000.00

See Managcmenfs Dircussion and Analysis section ofthis report for explanation ofsienpant budSet variances, odginal ad final



c-t

TOWNSEIP OT EARRISON SCUOOL DISTRICT
Sugrtrrf Comptrirc! Schcdulc

Gcsml Furd
Fircrl Ycrr Endcd Junc 30, 20lt

Origirrl
EcCset

278,t96.4
3t6,000.00

5,000.00

187,000.00

2,3s6,300.00

24,825.00

r7a000.00

Budgct

Tnufcn

(4,060.00)

Final

&C&l

N n\,t .46

3 I 1,940.00

5,000.00

t9t,060.00

2,06t,300.00

u,@0.00
t72,O02.75

. 21,886.2s .

.3,O74,985.46

Acturl

N 272,799.66

287,792.90

19t,060.00

2,O5t,615.t2

23,945.00

172,002.50

23,886.25

3,023,t0t.43

1,226,496-00

792,167.O0

t,219.00

6$,n0.73

4673,8s2.73

s u,98,904.r5

$ 20,8t5,5&t.62

65,0@.00

34,n2.OO

$ 134,p10.90

q089.00

$, 21,030182,52

562,487.9O

5,396.80

u,t47.10
5,000.00

Vrirocc
trird to

Agul
EXPENDITURES (CONT'D):

Curllrt Erppnrc (Cort'd):
Unrllocated Bmcfit!:

Socid Seority Contnlbutiou

Otls Ret'meirt Contributions - Regulr
Uremploymmt CompcnsEtion

Workmml Compmrtion
Halth Benefits

Tuition Reimbument
Ohrr Employoe Bmefits

Ohs Employc€ Benefit!

TotalUnallmted Btrefts

On-behalf TPAF Pmsion Contributiom (non-budgeted)

On-Betdf TPAF Post RetirEmqt Medioal (non-budgetcd)

on-Behrlf TPAF. LTDI (noD-budgeted)

Rcimburs€d TPAF Sociel Secudty Cortrib. (noFbudgetcd)

Total Orbchrlf Contributiom

Total Undistributcd Expaditum

Tot l Cumnt Erpffrc

Crpitrl Outhy:
Undirtributed Expenditff€r - Operation/Mtint. Phnt:

Equipment

Undisributod Expflditurc3 - Studqt Tramponation SwiH:
School Buser - Regulr
School Buse! - Spcisl

Facilitia fuquirition ud Construction Services:

ConsEuctiion Servis
Leuc Purchr* Principal

Trus&r to Crpitrl Prcjsrs
othtr objects

Totd Cspitrl Outhy

Transfer to Chans School

Totll Erpcndituro

Excerr @efioimcy) ofRerenuo Owr (Undr) Expenditurcs

Otho Fimcing Soum (Uses):

Unopaded Capital Rmrw Tnnsftrred Aom Ctpirsl Projecrr

Un*pended Capital Outlay Trur&red from Crpital Prcjtril

Totsl Othd Fimcing Soums (Urer)

Exem @cficicncy) ofRemus and Oths Fimcing Sourca

Ow (Undc) Expaditurer ud Othr Fimcing Usc

(288,000.00)

$ tq0?8,578.32 $ (62,700.00) $ 10,015,878.32

$ 19,115,555.r00 1933s,555,r0 $ (220,000.00)

$

4,060.00

(288,000.00)

(ns.@)
2.75

2n.2s

185,000.00

65,000.00

3A,n2.00

16,684.8E

655.00

0.25

5 1.E84.03

(1,226,496.N)

Qe2,t67.@)
(t,219.00)

6$.n0.731

Q.6n.E52.731

$

162.W

185,000.00

$ 1t5,r62.00

$ o,5r5,t66.52)

1,43t,86t.00

3,362,9t5.46

$ 3s,000.00 $ 35,000.00 $ 34,83E.00 $

1E5,000.00

65,000.00

34,972.N

$ 99J72.00 $ 220.000,00 $ 319,972.00

9.089.00 9,089.00

$ 19,444,515,10 $ $ 19,444,616,10

(E69.373.t0) (E69,373.r0)

$ (869,3R.10)

\2t3.29E.76

$ 56a487.90

1213,298.76

_t_2J35J86.66_

$ 1,431,86t.00

s u3r,861.00

Fund Belmcec, July I

Fmd Balucca, tue 30

Rspitul!tion
Rcltricted Fund Bdm@:

Ercs Surplus - Dsignated for Subs€qufit Yet's Ergmdiurres

Rcs€rve for Exc€s Surplus

Capital Rewe
Mrintaine Relwe

Arsigned Fund Belme;
Derignated for Subsequfit Y€ls Expmditures

Ys-EndEnombratm
Umssign6d Fund Bslmca

L$t ShteAid Paymt not Rwognizcd on I GAAP Ealis

see r'aanss#S$"rymffs9'go$Ydmry*I$e6$tff,lis report fs e,.plmrtion of

624,981.6E

664,58/..t9

6,621.69

553,7fi.75

,qtt,32
495,834.43

403,ttz.@

t 2J7sJ86.66

(60s,6qr.00)

-E-349t199-siSnildmt budSet variances, original and final



c-2
TOWNSEIP QF EARRISON SCEOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Fiscrl Yeor Ended June 3Q 2018

Original
Buds€t

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budset Actual

Variance
Final to
Actual

REVEI\IIES3
state sourqes
Federal sources

Local sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITT]RESI
Instruction:

Salaries ofteachers
Other salaries for instuction
Purchased professional - educ. services

Purchased professional - tech. servic€s
Tuition
General supplies

Textbooks

Total instruction

Support services:

Other salaries
Personal services. employee benefits
Purchased professional - educ. services

Purchased professional and rcchnical services

Purchased property services

Travel
Other purchased services

Supplies and materials
Other objects

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and construction services:

Building
Insfructional equipment
Noninstructional equipment

Total facilities acq. and const. services

Total expenditures

Total oudlows

Excess (Deficiency) ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures and other financing sources (uses)

$ 60,881.00
466,852.00

5,000.00

$ $ 60,881.00
466,852.00

5,000.00

$ 49,031.38

343,236.54

_ 4,391.52

396_6s9.44

$ (11,849.62)
(121,615.46)

(608.48)

fl36.073.56)532,733.00

68,139.59

2s7,617.00
31,818.00

357,574.59

9,483.83
s,726.22

I 18,404.00
8,400.00

33,t44.36

175-158.41

532,7$.04

68,139.59

257,617.00
31,818.00

51,750.70

209,122.32

11,990.47

t6,388.89

48,494.68
19,827.s3

84.71Lt0357,574.59 272,863.49

9,483.83

s,726.22
I I 8,404.00

8,400.00

33,t44.36

9,483.83

4,468.52
84p09.72

8,100.00

17,733.88

1,257.70

34,394.28
300.00

t5,4r0.48

175,158.41 123-795.95 162.46

532,733.00

532,733.00

532,733.00 136.073.56

532,733.00 396,659.44 136,073.56

-:

:
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c-3
Township of Ilarrison School District

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs fiom GAAP in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recopized.

Current Year

Prior Year

State aid payment recogrized for GAAP statements in current
year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

State aid payment recogrized for budgetary purposes, not

recogrized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year

Total revenues as reported on the statement ofrevenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances -

govemmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from
the budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not

reOeived is reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary
purposes, but in the year the supplies are received for financial

reporting purposes.

Current Year

Prior Year

Total expenditures as reported on the statement ofrevenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental firnds

$ 21,592,970.52 $ 396,6s9.44

603,947.00

(605,693.00)

s 21,591,224.s2 $ 396.6s9.44

s 21,030,482.62 $ 396,6s9.44

s 21,030,482.62 s 396,659.44

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund
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Required Supplementary lnformation - Part lll

Schedules Related to Accounting and Reporting

For Pensions and

Other Post Employment Benefits



L-1

TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Requlred Supplementrry lnformatlon

Schedule ofthe Dbtdct's Proportlonato Shar€ ofthe Net Penslon Llablllty
Publlc Employoos Retlrement System

June 30, June 30,

2017
June 30,

2016
June 30,

2015
Dlstid'8 proportion ot tho net percion

llability (asse0

DFlric'f3 propodionate share of the nsl
penslon llabllity (asset)

Disticts cover€d-employee payrcll

DisHcfs propodlonaG share of the net
p€nslon llability (asset) as a percentage

of lt8 covercd€mployee payroll

Plan fidudary net position as a percentage

of lhe btd p€nsion llability

June 30,
2014 20't4

0.0266886674% 0.02923O1t139% 0.0298861806% O.o2555267620yo 0.0301734788%

$ 6,212,695

1,889,883

328.73%

36.78%

a.657,216

1,780,940

488.10%

31.20%

6,708,849

1,843,690

363.88%

38.21%

5,53t1,069

1,952,764

283.35%

12.74%

5,706,751

1,947,894

296.05%

40.71%

$ $ $

This scfiedule does not contain ten years of infomalion as

GASB 68 was impl€mented during the tiscal year

end€d Jun€ 30, i015.
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L-2
TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Requlrod Supplom.ntrry lnformatlon
Scheduloof the Dlstdcf3 Contdbutlon.
Publlc Employeet Retirement System

Lr.t Five Fisctl YcaE

Juno 30,
2014

$ 258,159 i 250,014 $ 260,740 $ 256,941 $ 243,628

(258,159) (250,014) (280,7401 e58.941l (243,628)

June 30,

2018
June 30,

2017
June 30,

2016
June 30,

2015

Conractually requirod contribution

Confibutions ln relalion to lhe contractually
required conlributions

Conuibulion defi ciency (excess)

Dlsldct s covered-employee payroll

Confibulions as a percenbgo of
covoFd-€mployee paymll

$- $

1,889,883

13.06%

$ 0

1,780,940

14.U%

1,843,090

14.14%

1,952,764

13.16%

1,947,994

12.51%

This schedule do€s not conttain ten yoars of information as
GASB 68 was lmplomented duhng ho tigcal year

ended June 30,2015.
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L-3
TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Requlr€d Supplementary lnformauon
schedule of the Dlstdct's Proportionats share of tha Net Penslon Llability

TeacheE'Penslon and Annuity Fund
Laet Four Fiscal Yea/r

June 30,
2015

June 30,

2017

June 30,

2018
June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014
Districts proportion ofthe net pension

lhbility (a$s6t)

Dlstric'fs ptpporlionatB 6hars of the net
pension liabillty (asset)

State's proporlionate sharc of the not ponsion liability (asset)

associated wih the Distrid

Total

Dlstricf 6 cov€r€d-employ€e pafoll

Disticfs proportionato share ot the net
p€nsion liability (asset) as a p€rcentage

of ltE covercdomploye€ payroll

Plan fiduclary net position as a percenlage

of the total pension llabllity

This scfi€duh dogs not coniain ten yeal5 of informatlon as

GASB 68 was implem€nt€d during th€ Rscal year

ended Jun€ 30,2015.

0.0799484884% 0.079:!900680% 0.0793655108% O.O787U7U8% 0.0820489531%

$ $ $ $ $

$ 53,904,154$62,453,282$50,162,393$42,065,146041,466,896

t 53.904,154 $ 62,453,282 $ 50,162,393 $ 42,065,148 $ 41,,[66,8s0

9,1 18,023 8,639,427 8,320,432 8,003,650 7,983,691

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

25.41% 22.8o/o 28.71o/o 33.64% 33.70%
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TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary lnformation

Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability Associated with the District
and Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Public Employee's Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
Gurrent FiscatYear

June 30,

2018
State's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset)

associated with the District

M-t

0.08%

$ 43,144,768

$ 43,'144,768

0.00%

June 30,

2018

2,397,306

1,379,406

(6,150,214)

36,798

(999,324)

(3,336,028)

46.480,796

$ 43,',144,768

11,005,906

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

associated with the District

Total proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset)

associated with the District

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

OPEB Liability

TotalOPEB Liability

Service Cost
lnterest

Changes of assumptions and other inputs

Member Contributions
Benefit payments

Net Ghange in total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - beginning

Total OPEB Liability - ending

District's covered-employee pqyroll

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

$

$

$

$

This schedule does not contain ten years of information as

GASB 75 was implemented during the fiscalyear

ended June 30, 201 8.
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Township of Harrison School District
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Changes of benefit term: T\e vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical
benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are

always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for
2o/o of related interest earned on the contibutions. In the case of death before retirement, members'
beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

Changes of assumptions.' Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the
experience of TPAF members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year

average of Social Security data from 1953 to2013.

2. Public Employees'Retirement System (PERS)

Changes of beneJit terrn: Tfte vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides

retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical
benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

Changes of assumptions: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-
. retirement Mortality Table for male and female active employees. For State employees, mortality tables are

set back 4 years for males and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males

and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base

year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale.

Post-retiiement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality
Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members

and a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for
service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from
the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014
projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirtes were based on the RP-2000

Disables Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

3. Other Post-Retirement Plan - Public Employees' Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and
Annuity Fund

Changes of benefit term: T'lrcre were none.

Changes of assumptiores.' The discountrate changed fuom2.85Yo as of June 30,2016to3.85o/o as of June

30,2017.

81



Other Supplementary I nformation



Special Revenue Fund



TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON TOWNSIilP SCH(X)L DISTRICT
Speciel Rcvcnue Fund

Combining Statcmmt of Rwmus end Expendituro
Budgetary Buir

for tte Fisal Ycar Endcd Juc 3O 20lE

Brought
Fuward

(Exh. F--lB)

233,7tt.t4

233,7t1.t4

209,122.32
6,415.82

2r5,538.t4

13,275.00

4,898.00

18,t73.00

Broqht
Forward

IF.rh F--lCl

109,525.40

109 525 40

5t,750.70

5,574.65

57 725 7S

9,483.83
4,468.52

79,803.34

8,444.36

5? 200 05

Brought
Forward

Gxh. E-lD)

40 93t ?*

40,931.38

40.931.3r

Brought
Forwrd

439t.52

12,491.52

8,100.00

4,391.52

t2A9t.s2

E-1A

Total
2015

49,031.38
343,236.s4

4 39t 52

396.655 {4

51,7s0.70

209,t22.32
tt,990.47

272 461 49

9,483.E3
4,468.52

u,009.72
8,t00.00

17,733.88

t21 795 95

REVENUES:
Stat€ sources
Federal sotres
Iocal sowes

Total Rovmues

EXPENDITIJRES:
Instruction:
Salarie ofteachers
Othcr salarie for imtrucution
Professional edwation s€rvices
Prchase profcssional and technical servicc,s
Tuition
Gacat supplies
To(books

Total ingtrwtim

Support serviccs:

Other salarie
Pmmal swiccs-employee bmfits
Puchascd prof md educrional wis
Prelrasc profcssional and technical scrvies
Purclnsed technical services
Purclus€d property sruices
Tmvel
Othu purchased services (400-500)
Supplies md matcrials
Oth€r objrcts

Total support wices

Facilities rcquisition atrd const. ssfl.:
Building
Insfuctional equipn€nt
Non-i$tructimal €quipm€nt

Total facilities acquisition md const. sen.:

Total E:<penditws

Excess (Deficimcy) of rcvenres ovo (uder)
cxpmditurcs md otho financing soruces (uecs)

$ $

(Bft. E-IE)

$ ,[0,931.38 $ 8,10000 $

@
A

233-7ll l4 lo9 srs 40 40_931.38 12191.52 196 659 rt4



E.IB
TOWNSEIP OF IIARRIS'ON TOWNSSIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Spcciat Rcrmnc Fud
Combirlng Strtcmentof Rcvcnue md Expcndituru

Budgct ryB$is
for &c Fiscd Ysr Endcd Junc 3O 201E

IDEA

Basic
Currcnr Yr.

Basic
Prior Yr-

Presc.hml
CtlmtYr- Prior Yr Totsls

REVEI\IJES:
Staoc sourccs
Federal sorrccs

Total Rw€nuc

EXPEITIDITURES:
Insuction:
Salries of @chm
Other salaries for insfu€rtion
Prcfssimal eduetimwis
Purchase professionl md technical wim
Tuition
General supplies
T*tbooks

Total instruction

Suppdt swies:
Oths slarim
Personal servicesernployee bcnefits
hxchascd prof and eduqtional serviccs
Prchase professional md tcchnical wics
Purchascd tchnical scrvicc
Pwhased property swi6
Travel
Othcr purchasod servicc (400-500)
Supplies md mataials

Total support wic€s

Facilitic rquisition and const. serv.:
Instructional equipmat
Nm-instruaimal equipmat

Total faciliti* rcquisition md mst. sw.

Total E:rpanditrcs

Excess (Deficiacy) ofrcvques ovtr (undq)
qp@dihrc and olhs fimiag src(rs)

$

@
Ctr

g 204,6?7.t4

2M,637.t4

180,048.32
6,415.82

t86,464.t4

13,27s.00

4,898.00

18,173.00

s 2907400 s

2907400

29,074.O0

29 074 00

27? ?tt lL

2?37t1 t4

2@,122.32
6,4t5.A2

215,538.14

t3,275.00

4.898_00

It t?? 0{}

204,637.14 29.O74.N 233.7tt.14



TOWNSEIP OF EARRISION IOWNSEIP SCEOOL DISTNCT
Spaial Rwaue Fund

Combining Ststsment ofRsenucs rnd ErlEDdituru
Budgctrry Buir

for thc Ffucel Yer Ended ftne 3{r, 2{t1E

E.S.E.A.

r.lC

Totals

Titlcl TidcIIA TitleIII Titbry
CurrqrtYr. CmntYr. CurrmtYr. CmtYr.

REVENUES:
State $res
Fedmlsomcs

Tcxtbooks

Total iNtrwtim

$

@
o,

Total Revenm

EXPENIIITURES:
Instruction:

Salarics ofrcachm
Oths s8ltri6 for istsmtim
Professimal educatim sNi6
Puchrc professimat md technical swies
Tuition
Gmaal supplies

$ 54.8 .63

54,894.63

49,182.20

49,r42.20

3,762.43
1,950.00

s 20 353 34

20 i5? 14

$ 25,942.00 $ 8.335.43

25,942.N 8,335.43

9,483.83
5t3.El

7,500.00

109J25.40

109,525.40

2,568.50 51,750.70

5,574.65 5,574.65

8,143.15 57,125.35

9,4E3.83
4A68.52

29,803.t4

Support swi@s:
Othq saluies
Pmmal swicesaploye bmcfits
Pmhued prof ad edrcational sflices
Pwhre prcfessimal and teclmical *ryices
I\rched teclnical srui6
Puchased prcperty swiccs
Travel
Othc puchced wies (400-500)

Supptie md mtaials
Othsobj@ts

192.28

20,353.34

8,444.36

Total support strices 5,712.43 20.353.34 25,942.00 192.28 52.200.05

Frcilities equisition and const. sfl.
Building
hstructimal €quipmmt
Non-instrwtimal cquiprnmt

Total frcilities rcquisition md cmt. sw.;

Total Expcrditm 54,894.63 to ts? 14 25,942.@ 8,335.43 t09.525.&

Exess (Deficimcy) of mws ova (undc)
ffiditftstrdothafmcimws(ues) - _

E444.36



Chaotcr 191- Aurillen Scwics
cmp.

Education E.S.L. Tmsportatim

s 2,E34.E6 t 9q3_00 S 1,577.4t

TOWNSEIP OT EARRISON TOWNSHIP SCEOOL DISTRICT
SpcidR*aucFund

' Combirirg Strtemut of Rduus rod Erpenditrro
Budgctrry Bsris

fcthe Fisl Yw Endcd Juac3Q 201t

Ctails lql - Erndisooed Swhs
Com-tivc Em& Nonpublic Nmpublic Nonpublic

Clrcifietim Nusins Tehmlogv Terdb@k

E.1I)

Ceid
Foruard

(Exh. EIA)Sp€h

$ 13,659.E4

Suppl.
Insauctim

o{

REVENTJES:
State suGs
Fedqal sutg

Total Remw

EXPEIIIDITURES:
h$nrction:
Saltrieoft@hs
Othq slrie for instruoution
Prcfcsional eduotion wies
Prehre prcf*ional md tchniel wica
Tuition
Gmeal spplic
Tqtb@ls

Total instuctim

Supportwie:
Pmnal swic+mploye benefits
Purchased prcf. ud educational wices
Purchre prcfesional md techniel wiq
Purchased telmical gdies
Puchased prcpcrg swi€s
Trrel
Olha purchased wi6 (a00-500)
Suppli* ud matcials

Total support sfli€s

Frcilitic acquirition fid @nst. sw.:
Instuctional equipmant
Non-inshustional equipmmt

Toul facilities rcquisition md consi. w.:

Total Bxpsrdituru

Exes (Deficimcy) of rmue ow (mdc)
expqditrc ed oths fimcing oures (u*s)

$ 2,E54.44 $ 3,640.64 $ ?954.00 $ 3,015.60 $ 449t.59 $ ,t0,931.38

2,834.86 903.00 1,577.41 13.659.84 2,a54.44 3,640.64 7,954.00 3,015.60 4.491.59 40.93t.38

2,a!4.a6 903.00 t,577.4t 13,659.84 2,854.44 3,640.64 7,954.00 3,0t5.60 4A9t.59 40,931.38

a834.86 903.00 1,s77.4t 13.659.E4 2.A54.M 3,6&.& 7.954.@ 3,015.60 4.491.59 40,931.38

2,E34.86 903.00 1,577.4t 13,659.84 2,854.44 3,640.64 7,9s4.@ 3,015.60 4.491.59 ,10,931.38



TOWNSHIPOT EARRISON TOWNSItrP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Spcaiel Revcnuc Fund

Combining Stetmcnt of Rsqu€ .nd Expmdituro
Budgebry Brsit

for thc Fircrl Ytrr Endcd June3$ 20lt

$ 8,100.00

8,100.d,

s-
4.3s1.5)

4.391.52

E-lE

Totals

$ t,100.00

4,391.52

1?LqI"

Nonpublic
Homc

Instnrcim
Nonpublic ltwe's
Seqritv Gnm

REVENUES:
Strtc sou€cs
Fedenlstms
Iantsrc

$

o
@

Total Rewres

EXPENDITURES:
Instruaion:
Salries of terchem
Other salarics forinsnuc[tim
Professional edmtion swices
hrclnsc profcssional and ashicd ssvie
Tuition
Gmeral supplies
Todlooks

Total imtuction

Support wices:
Personal senicee<nployee b6ef b
Prchased prof. mdeducational wies
Pucbasc professional atrd technical ssvices
Prchased technical swies
Prchased prcperry sendce
Travcl
Otha prehased senices (/100-5m)
Supplies edmaffiials

Totel support servic€s

Frcilities acquisitim md mst w.:
Builditrgs
Non-insrucional equiprncnt

Total faciliries acquisition md const sfl.:

Due to Charter School

Total Exp€rditues

Exccss @eficimcy) ofroues om(unda)
qpmditircs md oihs fmcing sourccs (uscs)

8,100.00

4,391.52

t,100.00 4,391.52

8,100.@

4,391.52

12491 52

8,100.00 4,391.52 12,49t.52



Capital Projects Fund

Detail Statements



Exhibit F-l

TOWNSIIIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund

Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Project Title/Issue Approval Date

Revised
Budgetary

Appropriations

GAAP
Expenditures to Date

Prior Current
Years Year

Unexpended
Appropriations
June 30, 2018

Harrison Township School:
Roof Replacement

Totals

912712016 S 5,326,577.00 $4,566,859.42 $ 67,163.43 $ 692,554.15

s 5,326,577.00 S 4,566,859.42 $ 67,163.43 s 692,554.15
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Exhibit F-2

TOWNSIilP OF IIARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond proceeds and transfers
Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay

Total Revenues

$ 4,725,000.00

4,725,00q.00

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services

Equipment purchases

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) ofrevenues over (under) expenditures

Fund Balance June 30,2017

Fund Balance June 30,2018

51,063.43

16,100.00

67 163.43

4,657,836.57

( 8s9.42\

$ 90,977.1s
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Exhibit F-2a

TOWNSHIP OF IIARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule ofProject Revenueso Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Harrison Township School Roof Replacement
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30r 2018

Priot Periods Current Period Totals
Revised

Authorized
Cost

Revenues and Other tr'inancing Sources:

Bond proceeds

Transfer from capital reserye

Transfer from capital outlay
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchased professional and technical services

Construction services

Equipment purchases

Total Expenditures

Excess @eficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenses

$ $ 4,725,000.00 $ 4,725,000.00 $ 4,725,000.00

4,725,000.00 4,725,000.00 4,725,000.00

484,489.78
4,082,369.64

51,063.43
16,100.00

535,553.21

4,098,469.64
535,553.21

4,098,469.64

4,566,859.42 67,163.43 4,634,022.85 4,634,022.85

_rcfgqffe.42). $ 4,657,836.57 $ 90,977.15 $ 90,977.15

Additional Project Information:
DOE Project Number

Grant Date/Letter of Notification
Bond Authorization/Referendum Date

Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued

Original Project Authorized Cost

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase Over

Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

207 0 -0 50 -l 6 -l 000-Roofi ng
5/2s/2016
9/27/2016
$5,326,577
N/A
$5,326,577
$0

$s,326,s77

0o/o

2o/o

9/t/20t8
N/A
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Proprietary Funds



G,1

TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position

as ofJune 30, 2018

ASSETS:

Cunent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable:

State

Federal

Inventories

Total cunent assets

Fixed assets:

Equipment
Less Accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Uneamed revenue

Total cunent liabilities

NETPOSITION
Invested in capial assets net of

related debt

Unresfficted

2018

s 54,988.77

191.53

4,232.94

10,735.92

70,149.16

303,582.00
(294,984.00)

8,598.00

78,747.16

$
I1.581.56

1 1,58 1 .56

9,598.00

58,567.60

$ 67,165.60Total net position
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G-2

TOWIYSHIP OT' HARRISON SCIIOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

OPERATINGREVENUES:
Local sources:

Daily sales-reimbursable programs:

School lunch program

Total-daily sales-reimbursable programs

Daily sales non-reimbursable programs:

Adult and AlaCarte meals

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries

Benefits

Supplies and materials

Depreciation

Management fee

Direct expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Cost of sales - reimbursable programs

Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:

State sources:

State school lunch program

Federal sources:

National school lunch Program
Milk

U.S.D.A. comrnodities

Total non-operating revenues

Net income (loss)

Net position - July I

Net position - June 30

2018

$ 116,062.21

116,062.21

102,206.55

218,268.76

13t,929.96

I1,871.39
12,700.17

3,049.00
20,557.32

259.37
4,834.35

93,510.97

30,740.88

309,453.41

(91,184.65)

3,168.76

70,025.33

t,446.58
27,423.57

102,064.24

10,879.59

56,286.01

95

$ 67,165.60
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TOWNSHIP OF IIARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Staternent of Cash Flows

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers

Cash payments to employees for services

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital flrnancing activities:

Cash received from state and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:

Purchases of fixed assets

Net cash used by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on invesfinents

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July I

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustnents to reconcile operating income (loss)

to cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Federal commodities

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase/decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase/decrease in inventory

Increase(decrease) in accounts payable

Increase(decrease) in defened revenue

2018

$ 220,091.64

(143,801.35)
(140,77 l. l8)

(64,480.89)

76,503.19

76,503.19

(2,283.00)

(2,283.00)

9,739.30

45,249.47

$ 54,988.77

$ (91,184.65)

3,049.00

27,423.57

t,494.29
(7,085.98)

1,822.88

Net cash used by operating activities

96

$ (64,480.89)
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TOWNSHIP OF IIARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2018

Agency Trust Funds

H-1

Total

g 191,193.27
8.485.00

$ 199,678.27

$ 2,953.33
6,000.00

42,981.56

51.934.89

147,743.39

t4 743.38

$ 199.678.27

(o
@

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FT'I\D BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Interfund Payable
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Unreserved

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Student
Activitv Pavroll

$ 34,496.56
8,495.00

$ 42.981.s6

s 42,981.s6

42.981.56

$ 42.981.56 $ 2.603.08

Unemployment
Compensation

Insurance

I 147,230.23

Flexible
Spending
Account

$ 6.863.40

$ 2,603.08 $ 147,230.23 $ 6,863.40

$ 2,603.08 $ t47,230.23 $ 6,863.40

$ 2,603.08 $ 3s0.25 $
6,000.00

2,603.08 350.25 6,000.00

146,879.98 863.40

146.879.98 863.40
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TOWI\SHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund

Comparative Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the X'iscal Yeai Ended June 30,2018

Trust Funds
Unemployment
Compensation

Insurance

F'lexible
Spending
Account Total

REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Board Contribution
Interest on Investments
Employee Contributions

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:

Undistributed Expenditures :

Flexible Spending Account Claims
Unemployment Claims

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over (under) Expenditures

Net Assets July I

Net Assets June 30

18,350.00

31.863.84 18,350.00 50,213.84

20,376.93 20,376.93
12,493.85

$ $ $
332.59

31,531.25
332.s9

49,881.25

, 12,493.85

12,493.85 20,376.93 32,870.78

17,343.06

130,400.32

$ 146,879.98 $ 863.40 $ 147,743.38

19,369.99

t27,509.99

(2,026.93)

2,890.33

99
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TOWI{SHIP OT' HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund

Schedule of Rmeipts and Disbursements
For The F'iscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Balance
June 30,2017

Cash
Receipts

Cash
Disbursements

Cash Balance
June 30,2018

Accounts
Receivable

June 30,2018

Reserve
Balance

June 30,2018

School Fund

Library Account

Total Liabilities

$ 22,422.33

19,769.35

$ 131,212.61

26,860.29

$ 138,704.21 $

27,063.81

14,930.73 $ 8,485.00

19,565.83

s 23,415.73

19,565.83

$ 42,191.68 $ 158,072.90 $ 165,768.02 $ 34,496.56 $ 8,485.00 $ 42,981.56

100
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TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Balance
June 30,2017

Balance
June 30, 2018Additions Deletions

$ 29,174.88 $ 13,922,348.51 $ 13,948,920.3r $ 2,603.08

$ 29,174.!!_ $ 13,922,348.51 $ 13,948,920.31 $ 2,603.09Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Net Payroll
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 29,174.88

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interftnd Payable

Total Liabilities

$ 7,690,676.52 $

6,230,89r.55
780.44

7,690,676.52
6,257,463.35 $ 2,603.09

780.44

_$_2e,174.!!_ s 13,922,348.51 $ 13,948,920.31 $ 2,603.08

101
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TOWNSHIP OF' IHRRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Statcment of Serial Bonds
June 30, 2018

I-1

Balance
June 30.2018

Dete of
Issue

21u03

t2l3/t5

Amount of
Issue

$ 2,857,000

4,860,000 3nlt9
3lll20
3nt2t
3llt22
3nt23
3/U24

9lv20t8-2023
9nt24-2031

91U32

$ 560,000
580,000
625,000
650,000
675,000
660,000

200,000
400,000
325,000

Annuel Maturities
Date AmoilI-

Interest
Rete

Balance
June 30. 2017 Issued Retired

3.875o/o $ 220,000 $ 220,000 $

4,295,000 535,000 3,750,000

4,725,000$ 4,725,000

$ 4.505.000 $ 4.725-000 $ 755-000 $ 8.475.000

Issue

School Distict Bonds

2015 Retunding Bonds

2017 School Bonds tu29l20t7 4,725,000

4.00o/o

4.00o/o

4.00Yo

4.00o/o

4.00o/o

4.00o/o

2.00Yo

3,00Yo

3.00o/o
o(r)



TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Statement of Obligations Under Capital Leases

June 30, 2018

t-2

Balance
June 30. 2018

Date of
Lease

Term of
Lease

Interest
Rate

Balance
June 30.2017

Amount of Original Lease
Principal Interest IssuedPurnose

Various Equipment

Retired

$ 65,000.00 $

$ 65.000.00 s

7nult3 4 Years $ 319,000.00 $ 9,493.51 3.50o/o $ 65,000,00 $

$ 65.000.00 $

o5



TOWNSIilP OF IIARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetrry Comparison Schedule

Debt Scrvice Fund
Fiscal Yerr Ended June 30, 2018

Original
Budset

Budget
Transfers

Final

?_u{set

$ 623,119.00

I-3

Variancc
Final to
ActualActual

REVENIIES:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
State Sowces:

Debt Service Aid Type II

Total Revcnues

EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:

Interest

Redemption of Principal

Total Regular Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess @eficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures

Fund Balances, July l

Fund Balances, June 30

Recapitulation of Excess @eficiency) of Rwenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Budgeted Fund Balance

$ 623,119.00

305,085.00

$ $ 623,119.00 $

305,085.00

928.204.00 928,204.00 928,204.00

179,925.00

755,000.00

934,925,00

179,925.00

755.000.00

g34,g25.00

179,925.00

755.000.00

934,925.00

934,925.00

(6,72t.00)

721.31

934,925.00 934,925.00

(6,721.00)

6,721.31

(6,72t.00)

6.721.31

$ 0.31 $ $ 0.31 $ 0.31 $

$ 6,721.00 $ 6,721.00 $ 721.00 $

105
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2009

s s,9t2"879
1,240,010
(2e3,086)

$ 6,859,803

2010

$ 6,s47,s2t
780,642

(471,10s)

_t_ggs?491_

2012

s 7,664,319
1,225,768
(467.71s\

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2013 20t4 2015

$ 9,080.s03

1,394,1 l8
(6-275-928\

2016

$ 9,189,7s7
1,638,168

(6.483.641)

2011

$ 9,s59,773

Q,7s7,884)
(7,228,364)

_9___(4%A7r_

Erhibit J-1

201E

$ 4,93s,734
2,463,692

(7,400,938)

$ fl-512)

Township of Harrison School District
Net Ass€ts by Componcnt,

Iast Ten Fiscal Years
(rccrual basis of accounting)

ANAADITED

Govemmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Tolal govemmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted

Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net assets

District-wide
lnvested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted

6 Unrestricted
T-ltal district net assets

$ 91,680 S 77,817 $ 66,774 $ $ 41,688 $ 29,64s $

20lt

$ 6,973,441

912,041
(453.64s)

$ 8,125,309

1,203,904
s 8,420,s27

1,442,289

$ 7.431.837 $ 8.422.372

(s6e,es7) (648,123)

_$__!412s6_ _S e21!.6e!_ $ 4.198.693 $ 4.344,284

39,769

$ 106,543

s3,731

33,936

$ 87.667

22,928

14.74s

9,5_54

40.106

$ $ 9,364 $ 8,598

sEJ68
$ 67.166

17,929 40,610-$ tor,oo, -$ rrs,4r? s 37.673 $ 49.660
46,922

$ s6,286

$ 6,004,559

1,240,010
(27s,1s7)

s 6,969,412

s 6,62s,344
780,642

(43O,49s)

s 6,97s,491
(s3720r)

$ 8,833,700

$ 8,450,172

1,442,289
(61s,r43)

_9_2,ry3r3_

$ 9,103,431

1,394,1 l8
(6,261,183)

$ 9,199,311

1,638,168
(6,443,535)

$ 9,569,t37
(2,7s7,884)
(7-lgt-442\

$ 4,944,332
2,463,692

(7.342.370',1

$ 7,O39,21s

9t2,041
(413-876\

$ 7,537,380 $ 8.334.705

$ 7,610,s88 $ 8,166,997

1,225,768
(s01.651)

1,203,904

$ 4,236,366 $ 4,393,944 $ (370,189) $ 65,6s4

Source: District Records



Exhibit J-2
Township of Eerrison School District

Changes in Net Assets, Last Ten Ficcal Yeers
(acc rua I b as is of account ing)

UNAUDITEI'

Fiscel Year Ending Junc 30,
2W 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 ?,o15 2016 2017 2018

Expenses

Governmental activities
' Instruction

Tuition
Related Services

Administrative Services

Central Services

Operations and lvlaint€-nanc€

Transportation

Transfer to Charter Schools

lnterest on long-term debt
Unallocated Employee Benefits
Other

Total govemmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Food service

Total business-t1ae activities expense

Total distict expenses

Program Revenues

Govemmental activities:

Charges for services:

Tuition
General Rwenues:

Property Taxes

Unrestricted State Aid
Other Revenues

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contibutions

Total gomatal activitie lrogmrcvenues

Business-type activities:

Charges for services

Food service

Operating grants and contributions ..

Other
Capital grants and contributions

Toral busines typc activitie prcgm rcmres
Total district program r€venues

$ 8,640,298

319971
r,40t,257

994,334

436,478

\849,46
1,207,806

$ 8,804,095

393437
1,476,00E

976,686

s36,243

t,634,741
1,194427

s 8,763,531

t71,604
1449,200

967,606

465,712

1,925,158

1240,324

$ 8,800,012

344,528

1470,4r9
t,009,579

s4299s
1,721,179

1,245,599

$ 8,995,888

79tSs6
1,249386

1,005,260

s02,429

t,532,140
1,269;49E

$ 8,825,503

83E,439

1445,07t
1,029,728

500,940

t,8404t6
1,29s279

$ 9,051338

602,957

1,443,478

995,175
597,866

1,821300

1,3t2,316

$ 9,008,770

43tAt3
1,596,051

t,072,632

313,029
2,059,732

t,3t4At2

$ 9,493,873

269ts
1,819,320

t,tt0,t26
576,6s7

638s,7O7

123828s
9,089

t4t2t0
6,134,889

$ 9,80s,168

34,364
1,7t0,2u
1,010,439

617,713

2,106,67
1,198,694

9,089

186,958

12,991,2s2
4t,t42

29,711,790

s00s79
3J31,018

E3,866

18,865,333

4U,867 422,769 389,431 388,582 303,635 278A52 354y'18
3,739,237 3,72s,178 4,038267 4,5s9,061 4A09A6s 4,77s,979 s,327954

42,0E0 . 45,07t 58,645 40,797 41,s07 42,607 25,176
19261,821 t9,t76,1s3 t9,6t9Js4 20,334597 20,s29983 2092t,s68 21,s02,687

42,860
26,978,93r

o
@

388,163 397,9s8 401,&2 4p2396 385,360 3U,2s6 387,8EE 333141 328,644 309A53

_____!88,t61_ , 397,958 40t,il2 402,396 385"360 3U,2s6 3E7,888 33t,441 328,644 3}9ls3
_$-!e2lile6_ _ye,6s.Jl2_ _!J2,sTrE_ _$n,ilnJsl_ ._snn09s7_ _$n9r423e_ _q430e/59_ _q2$16,!2!_ _$ryo7flL _in,02r243 -

$ 169,808 $ 135,969 $ 180F62 $273,106 $294,094 $ 293,151 $ 230,216 $ 122,489 $ 195,84s $ 262,0s1

19,036,080 19,259,081 19,7s0,926 20,522,622 20,860p81 20,985A20 2t43sg68 21,648278 22,208,172 30,136,753

10,8s0,177

5,737,796

139,000

2,119,299

296A97

70,614

10,882910

5,736,719

209,ttg
2,294,364

309,082

97,694

11,444)80

5,634,896

20s,s77
2,28s,511

305,584

83,174

11104,387
6,165135

240,113

2,439,581

285,7ss

9E,765

1rJ10,685
6,255,971

103,308

2,696,023

269,956
102,179

I 1,849,143

6,783,692

t07,260

1952,174

277,ts3
95,2U

12,025,743

6,535,903

t3024t
2,513,86s

259,726
103,210

t2A3t,2O9
6,096,24t

162,290

2,836,049

242,634

toz,794

12,563,880

62t1,573
173,781

3,063,093

2249s3
I 10,317

12,8s7,325

6,206,s97

214,478
10,s96,262

21E269
102,064

367Jn 406r% 3SS/5S 3%,sn 372,137 3n,$? 36r,%6 34s,4r8 n5n 3ry33
_[lllglu _q]e,665,852_ _q2gI2{E4_ _$20,e07W_ _$a234218_ _$213s7W_ _$_21,?e!t04_ _p2].9e3w_ _$n,s43A42_ _$_i0,45?,0!g_

Net @xpenre/Revenue end Change in Net Assetg

Govemnentalactivities $ 270,747 $ Q,7N) $ 574,773 $ 902,868 S 5253U S 455,437 $ 514,,100 $ 145,591 $(4,770,759) $ 424g63
Bnsiness-qrpeactivities (2r,0s2) E,818 (12,8E4) (17,876) (13223) (ll,Sl9) (249s2) ttg87 6,626 10,880
rotaldishict-widenetexpense S 24e,6e5 _$__qqzg_ _{__-561,$2_ _$_-984J22_ _$__512,16!_ _!__14311!_ _$_tqtl!_ $ 157,57s $ (4J64J3) $ 435,s43

Source District Records



2009

1,406,882 $
(91.145)

Township of Herrison School District
Fund Belenccg Govcrnmentel Fuads,

Lrst Tcn Fiscd Ycers
(nadified accnml bask of accouting)

UNAADITED

Fiscal Ycer Ending June 30,
2010 20ll 2At2 2013 mt4

935,303 $ rps3,s46 $ 122s,7ffi $ 1203,904 $ 1,442288 $ t240238 $
(2s1 146\

2015 2016

1,631,4M
(231,615)

ErhibitJ-3

mfl 20r8

$ 1,802254 S 2,372,714
(l92-902\ Q02,620)

General Fund

Reserved

Unreserved

Total General Fund

All Other Govemmental Funds

Reserved

Unreservd reported in:

Special revenue fund

Capital projecs fund
Debtservice ftnd
Permanent fimd

Toul all othergovemmental funds

Souncc llistrict Rccords

$

$ ,1,315,737 $ 684.rs7
(183,381) (106;835) (138,903) (167,041) Q03S6t\

_$.____ugl65_ _!___l,rr8,2l_ _t_1,065,00!_ _$ t27s2n_ _$__!w,s77 $ 1.399.83r $ 1.609352 $ 2.170-094

$$

$$$

$ $ $ $

$

$

$

$ $

$

$

ts3,879

$ 153-879 $

6,722

(4,566,8s9)

6n0

6-722 $ (4_s60-139) $

90,977

n-9'n

o(0



Township of Herrison School District
Changes in Fund Brhnc€s, Governnental Fundg

Last Ten Fiscal Years

I]NAADITED

2011 2012 zoLS

Exhibit J-4

20tt

Rscnues
Tax levy
Tuition charges

Transportation fees

Interest€amings
Miscellaneous

State souces
Federal sources

Total revenue

Expenditures
Insfuction

Regular Instsuction

Special education instruction
Other spocial inshuction

Support Services:

Tuition
Stud€nt & instuction rclated services

General adrninistrative services

School Administrative services

Business administrative sewices

Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation

Unallocated anployee benefits

Capital outlay

Transfer to Charter Schools

Debt service:

Principal
Inbr€st and other chargps

Toal expenditures

Ercess @efi cienry) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other Financing sourcs (uses)

Capital leases (non-budgeted)

Procceds of Refunding Bonds

Proceeds ofBonds
Prym@t to Rcfildrd Bord E$w Agot

Transfers in
Transfers out

Toal other financing sormes (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as apercenage of
noncapital eeenditures

960p00 980,000

477-078513-350

t9-437-402 19.890.661

464-500 464.500

$ 10,850,177

169,808

52,670
46)26
40,004

7,s80,3 r I
396,784

2009

l9-136-080

5,599,845

1,692,263

7tl,461

$ 10,882,910

135,969

I 19,895

44,202
4s92r

6,636,896
I 394 188

2010

19-259-081

5,833,265
1,569,759

811964

$ 11,444280
180,662

120,865

24,8s0
59,862

7,343948

$ l 1,404,387

273,106
151,000

20,776

68,336
7,862,333

$ 1r,510,685
294,094
67,t25
7434

28,749
8,5 18,75 I

$ 11,849,143

z93,l5t
61,175

4,768
4t,317

8298,167

2014

5,660,663

1,694563
821389

$12,02s,743
230,216
82369

4,515

43,357

7,t8r'.,184

2015

6931,499
1,606,319

83 1y'00

6029s7
r,374392

320,810

589,149

597,866
1,666,576

r,312316
3,650,719

430,860

2016

$ 12,431209
r22A89
77,940

338

84,013

817s,024

5,776,684
1,714,531

882,177

2017

$ 12,563,880

195,845

106,015

492
67,273

8,861,283

5,940,027
2946,s70

913,386

26,915
1,8r9320

4stA44
s7296r
s76557

1,690,839

1,238284
s,338934
4,997,309

9,089

s12,857,325
262,09t
76962
2493

t3s922
9,238858

6,346,081

1932,874
9t9,761

576,460 762A69 433243 437,699 440,66s 457,266 413,383 343237
t9750927 20,542A07 20,860,081 20985A20 20,011,049 21,648,279 22,208,171 22,916,088

5,377,72t
r,656239

808,528

5495,392
1s93,231
1,026,813

5,718,012

1,721,568
985,t62

o

319971
1,4012s6

364,463
542,926
4361?9

1,701,309

1p55,887
3,431,018

707,174

393437
1,476,008

3s2,781
539,747

536244
1,658,805

1,194427
3,739,237

327,909

461548
1449,200

324479
552984
465,712

1,762,844

1,240,324

3J2s,178
269,070

62593s
t,261,394

349,348

575,745

542,095

1,655427
t24s,s99
4,029,0t2

326,730

791,656
1249,386

329,821
593,847

502,429

1,512,779

1,269498
4,559,061

217,684

838,439

tA4spTt
3552t4
591,500
500,940

1,67s,540
1,295,279

4AO9l6s
369,722

43tAt3
1,596,051

408,569

578,635

373,029
1,978,557

t,314412
s,t67,t4t

283,380

34364
1,710284

345,013

583,141

6t7,733
t,893,875
1,198,694

s,1otA23
201,973

9p89

(301322) (631,580) 186,009 268,sst (53932) (108J54) (6201) t2t,e6s (4,357,33e) 486,858

464,500 464,500 319,000

5,310,797

4,725,000
(5216,666)

92,327

(219970) (e2,327') ___-_____-___: 

-

Qt997O) 94,131 _____:_ 4,72s,000

$ t63.178 $ fl67.080) _!__ls6,gg9 _$.__2ggrl j_€121a _$__-210246_ _9 Q26.r?rL _g___?l!p%_ _!.-C,35x132I _$_l?1!!I!_

1,030,000 1,045,000 1,100,000 I,115,000

440,991 403,035 363,110 321,289

t9,s64,9t8 20,273,8s6 20,914,013 21994,174

319,000

715,000 795,000 740,000 755,000

287,387 286,73s 203J75 179925
20,0172s0 21,526,3t4 26,s65,510 22429230

7.9Yo 7.4o/o 7 -60/o 7.3o/o 7.lo/" 6-9o/o 5.lYo 5.1o/o 4.4Yo 4.2o/o



2018

Township of llarrison School District
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Sourcc

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

ANAUDITED

2016 2015 20L4 2013

$ 1,080

4,080 s 6,624

3,963 382

17,304 12,684 13,569 13,793

10,214 15,034 tt,t77 33,555

121

16,187

16,224

16,528

11,209

3,s94

619

2,876

_$_E3i9_ _$ 73940_ _$_8,335_

Exhibit J-5

$ 40,608 $ 46,280

t9,295

4,100

8l

s 70,496

20t2 2011 2010 2009Descriotion

lnsurance Refunds

lnterest on Investnents
Sale of Equipment
Recycling
Use of Facilities - Rentals

FEMA Reimbursement

NJSIG - Saftery Grant Award
NJ Clean Enerry Rebate

Prior Year Refunds

Tuition Refunds

Energ5l Curtaiknent Rebates

Photocopies

Seminar Fees

E-Rate Rebates

Sbda Machine
Cancellation of Old Outstanding Checks

Forfeited FSA Funds

Sale ofUsed Textbooks

Lost/Damaged Book Fines

Source: DistrictRecords

20,812 20,998

4,713
4,325

24,602 13,833

6,327 9,002

s 28,22s
30,427

2,067

600

1,055

336
8,023

2017

$ 14,428

3,492

800

2,735
172

1,731

$ &5e5
1,545

611

t8,562
5,107

13,958

14,482
19,163

2,272

2t

$ 84.012

$ 15,148

4,278
50

503

27

3l

$ 18,487

2,887
s 22,2rt

1,020

24,395

740

989

254

s07

54

608240 470
89

18 82

_!_-!3]J!9_ _$ 67273_

80

_$_{7,635_

488

4,96s

2,982
84

$ 45.397 $ 32.395



Yer
Endcd
Ire 31, V.strt Isd Raidatid

Tmoship of Heniron Sch@l Diltrict
Alsed Vtlre.nd Actu.l Vdre of Tebl. Prepcrty'

Itrt T.tr trlscd YdE
' UNAUDITED

Fam Rcg. Qfrrm Commercid Ind$trid ___AgE!s!_
Totrl Ass$d

Vduc
Nct Vdurtion

Totd DiGt
School T.r

Rdc b

E*ibitJ{

Estimrted Actud
(County Equelircd

VrlmI

L$:
Ter-

Ercmpt
Prepcrty PublicUtilitie'

2009 $
2010 c
mll
2012
2013

2014
2015

2016
2017 c
2018

27,824,900

36,974500
32,150,900

28,662,100

25,357,800

25,368,500

24430,7ffi
22,055,200

22,815,000

2t,975,200

$ 321,700

321,700

322,300

322,300

0$
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,362,052

4,538,574

3,683,324

3,724475
3,369,388

2,975,643

2,969,606

2,882,389

3,060,097

3,10r,640

1.318

0.86s
0.860

0.859

0.877

0.878

0.893

0.894

0.841

0.856

$ 728,280,000

1,t47,615,700
I,t62,559,600
1,175,818900

I,187,245,000

1,208,175,300

1,229,510,600

1,250,162,100

1,352,280,900

1,360,971,500

$ 18,219,200

32,252,500

32,733,200

3 1,758,500

31,111800
31,077,500

29,569,200

30,003,500
28,876,800

29,304900

$ 2,152,600

2,054,900
2,866,800

2,866,900

2,874,300

2,864,300

z,Us,900
2,828,s00
2,820300
2,813,s00

$ 42,036,700

92,45t,900
84,819y'00
89,881,800

92,675,6N
92,196,500

95,725,500

96,665J00
I 18,532,700

I I 1,546,200

$ 4,531,500

7,297,300

7,297,300

7,297,3N
7,297,300

7,297,300

7,297,300

1,073,300

$ 823,044900
1,318,646,900

t,322,427,200
1,336,285,500

1,346,561,900

1,366,979,400

1,389,700,900

1,403,109,700

1,525,648,100

t,526,933,600

$ 825,406,952 $
1,323,185,474

1,326,t1o,524
t,340,009,975
1349,93r,288
1,369,955,043

1,392,670,506

1,405,992,089

1,528,708,197

1,s3093s,240

$ 1,541,193,020

1,5t4,985,628
r,618,787,260

tAl7,698,3st
t,378206,992
1,396,971,866

1,44s,7t9,021
1,477,037,598

1,517,540,5 l8
1,533,258,395

Soure: Gloueter Cuty Boerd of Tuiion Abrtr.ct of ltrtebl6

Note Real propdty is rc{uiEd to b€ ssed at sme percsftge of fw valre (fair or mart* value) st$lislrcd by oh owry board of taxarion

RssessMt @u shd ordaod by the Couty Boud of Tq*io

e Tmble Valw of Machimy, Implmmls ed Equipmqt of Telephme, Telegraph ed Mssager SysEm Compmic

: b Tqrarc{epq$100
N

c Rcvaluatio in 2010 ard 2017



Exhibit J-7

Township of Harrison School District
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Yeais

(rate per $100 ofassessed value)

ANAADITED

Harrison Township Board of Education Overlappinq Rates

Fiscal General
Year Obligation
Ended Basic Debt

June 30, Rate (a) Service (b)
Total
Direct

Clearview
Regional

School

1.030

0.642
0.646

0.644
0.668

0.679

0.696
0.732

0.706
0.738

Gloucester

Countv
Fire

District

$ 0.1s0

0.097

0.098

0.097

0.097

0.083

0.082

0.083

0.076
0.077

Harrison
Townshin

Total Direct
and

Overlapping

Hele
2009 $

2010 c
2011
2012

2013
2014
2ot5
2016

2017 c

2018

1.2t3
0.787

0.788

0.787

0.807

0.829

0.845

0.848

0.80r
0.816

L318

0.865

0.860

0.859

0.877

0.878

0.893

0.893

0.841

0.8s6

$$$ 0. l0s
0.078

0,072

0.072

0.070

0.049

0,048

0.045

0.040

0.040

$ 1.102

0.675

0.629

0.627

0.661

0.676
0.730

0.759
0.717

0.730

$$ 0.393

0332
0.347

0.407

0.425

0.471

0.504

0.523
0.485

0.495

3993
2.611
2.580

2.634
2.728
2.787

2.905
2.990

2.825
2.896

Note:

Source: District Records and County Tax Assessor

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The lery when added to other components of the

district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending $owth limitation calculation

(a) The distict's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net valuation taxable.

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.

c Revaluation in 2010 and 2017
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Exhibit J-8

Township of Harrison School District
Principal Property Tax Payers,

Current Year and Ten Years Ago

ANAUDITED

2009 2018

Taxpayer

Taxable
Assessed

Value

%o ofTotal
District Net

Assessed Value

Taxable
Assessed

Value

7o ofTotal
District Net

Assessed Value

Mullica West Ltd.

Mantec Associates

AEW SCT Mullica Hill, LLC
Mullica Hill Self Storage, LLC
Mullica Hill Self Storage II, I J.C

Mullica Hill Commons, LLC
MullicaAssoc, C/O CVS PHARMACY, Inc.

Levco Enterprises, LLC

Madison/Canuso c/o Thomson-K,Fahey

Ituitikson, Douglas E.

Mullica Realty, LLC
Inspira Medical Center Woodbury, Inc.

Madison/Canuso Richwood Village LLC
I Storage, LLC
Woodland Four, LLC
Verizon New Jersey C/O Duff & Phelp

CVS
WAWA,Inc.

Total

Source: County Tax Assessor

$ 4,095,000

3,105,200

8,786,600

1,640,900

1,431,200

r,429,000

990,400

971,500

910,800

875,800

0.50o/o

038%
1.07%
0.20o/o

0.17%
0.17%
0.12%
0.r2%
0.11o/o

0.10o/o

$ 5,655,000

3,341,600

19,600,000

I1,391,700

7,239,500

5,878,100

4,873,000

3,101,640

2,18r,800

2,108,400

0.37o/o

0.22o/o

1.28o/o

0.74%
0.47o/o

0.38o/o

032%
0.20o/o

0.14%
0.13o/o

s 24.236.400 2.94Yo $ 4.25%
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Township of Harrison School District
Property Tax Levies and Collections,

Last Ten F'iscal Years

UNAADITED

Exhibit J-9

Collections in
Subsequent

Years

Collected within the Fiscal Year of
the LevyFiscal

Year
Ended

June 30,

Taxes Levied for
the Fiscal Year

I 0,850, I 77

10,882,910

11,444,280

11,404,387

11,510,685

11,849,143

12,025,743

12,431,209

12,563,880

72,857,325

Amount

$ 10,850,177

10,882,910

11,444,280

r1,404,387

I 1,5 10,685

rr,849,143
12,025,743

12,431,209

12,563,880

12,857,325

Percentage of
Levy

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

20t7
2018

$

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School Taxes are collected by the Municipal tax Collector. Under New Jersey State

Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire propedy

tax balance, in the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

General
Obligation

Bonds

Percentage of
Personal

Income o

Exhibit J-10

Pcr

Township of Harrison School District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAUDITED

Governmental Activities
Business-Type

Activities

Certificates of
Participation

Bond
Anticipation

Capital Leases Notes (BANs) Capital Leases Total District Capita r

2009

2010

201 I
2012

2013

2014

2015
2016

2017

2018

$ 12,280,000

I 1,300,000

10,270,000

9,225,000

8,12s,000

7,010,000
6,29s,000

s,245,000

4,s0s,000

8,475,000

s 7s7,209

479,500

289,500

145,500

$ r3,037,209

1t,779,500

10,559,500

9,370,500

8,12s,000

7,329,000

6,490,000

s,375,000

7,570,000
8,4?5,000

3 19,000

195,000

130,000

6s,000 $ 3,000,000

2.49%
2.260/o

194%
1.67%

1.41%

l.22yo

1.02%

0.83%
b

b

1,036

948
844

745

641

570

502
415

s82

b

Source: School District Financial Reports

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and

population for the prior calendar year.

b Not Available
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Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

General
Obligation

Bonds Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value t of
Property

Exhibit J-l1

Per Capita

Township of Harrison School District
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

2009
2010 c

2011

2012
20t3
20t4
20t5
20r6
2017 c

2018 c

$ 12,280,000

11,300,000

10,270,000

9,225,000

8,125,000

7,010,000

6,295,000

5,245,000

4,505,000

8,475,000

$ 12,280,000

11,300,000

10,270,000

9,225,000

8,125,000

7,o1o,ooo

6,295,000

5,245,000

4,505,000

8,475,000

r.49%
0.85%

0.77%

0.69%
0.60%
0.51%

045%
0.37%

0.29%

0.55%

976
910

821

734

64r
545

486

40s

346
b

Source: School District Financial Reports

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit J-7 for property tax data.

b Not Available
c Revaluation in 2010 and2017
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Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes

Harrison Township

Other debt
Clearview Regional School District
Gloucester County

Township of Harrison School District
Ratios of Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As ofJune 30,2018

UNAUDITED

Net Debt
Outstanding

$ 37,715,817

13,728,000

225,453,500

100.000% s 37,7ts,8r7

51.960/o

5.80o/"

7,133,068

13,078,266

57,927,151

8,475,000

Estimated
Percentage

Appticable "

Exhibit J-12

Estimated Share
of Overlapping

Debt

Subtotal, overlapping debt

Harrison Township School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Sources Ilarrison Township Treasurer's Officer, Ctearview Regional School District, Gloucester County Finance Office

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping govemments that is bome by the residents and

businesses of Harrison Township. This process recogrizes tha! when considering the Distict's ability to issue and repay long-term

debt, the entire debt burden bome by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debq ofeach overlapping payment'

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage ofoverlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.

Applicable percentages were.estimated by determining the portion of another govemmental unifs taxable value that is within the

district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.

$
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Exhibit J-I3
Towhip of Harrbon School District

I*gal Debt Margin Infomation,
I{st Ten Fiscal Y€n

UNAUDITED

Avaage equalized valution of taxable prcperty.

Debt Limit (2 l/2o/o of Nqage eA\dized valuation)

Legal debt rmgitr

f issl Yar

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fissl Ysr 2018

Equalized valuation bmis
s t,s27,481,077

1,498,888,687

2015 t,4s9,923,206

t t_!___!"!!s"p2219._

lA/31 s 1,49s,430,990

37,385,775 t
8,475,000

_t___2!2rcfl:_

2017
2016

lBl
lcl

lB-cl

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable to limit

L:gal debtmgin

TFal net <lebt applicable to tlre limit
s a pffitage of debt limit

$

2009

35,003,590

l2 280.000

2010

$ 36,793,166 $

I 1.300.000

20tl

36,805,661

10.270.000

2012

35,977,357

9.22s.000

2013

34,957,506

8 t25 000

201s

34,600,999

6.295.000

2016

35,41t,007

5 245 000

20t7

36,471,218

7,505-000

2018

37,385,775

8.475.000

$ s

2014

$ 34,433,373 $

7.010-000

J__JL9il]_

20.360/o

$ $

s 22.723.590 $ 25.493.166 $ 26.535.661 S 26.752.357 $ 26,832,506

35.08o/o 30.71o/" 27.90o/o 25.640/" 23.24Yo

s 28-305-999 $ 30.166.007 s 28.966.218 s 28.910.775

18.l9o/o t4.8lo/o 20.58o/o 22.670/o

Sourcc: EquNlird Vdu|tionbasg w€re obteincd from frc Annual Rcport of the Strte of Nw Jcney, Departnmt of TmsurX, Division of Tantion

r Limit st by NJSA l8A:24-19 for a K thrcugh 6 dishicq oths 7o limits would be appteble for othu districts



Township of Ilarrison School District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAADITED

Per Capita
Personal

Incomeb

Exhibit J-14

Unemployment

Rate"Year Population

Personal Income
(thousands of

dollars)

$ 516,513,660

523,128,307

52r,907,392
543,761,448

560,083,682

575,197,479

599,499,150

633,852,960

647,927,742

d
d

a

2008

2009

2010
20tr
2012

20t3
2014
20t5
2016

2017

2018

12,4I5
12,587

12,424

12,504

12,574

12,68r

12,851

12,940

12,957

13,015

d

41,604

41,561

42,008
43,487

44,543

45,359

46,650

48,984

50,006

d

d

s.20%

7.60%
8.10%

790%
8.10%

6A0%
s.60%
4.80%

3.80%
3.20%

$

d

Source:
u Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b Per Capita information provided by U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis

'Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
d Not Available
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Township of Harrison School District
Principal Employers,

Current Year and Ten Years Ago

UNAI]DITED

2018

Rank
(Optional) Employees

Exhibit J-15

Percentage of
Total

Employment

Percentage of
Total

Employment

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
NiA
N/A

2009

N

Employer

Inspira Health
Underwood Memorial Hospital

Kennedy Health Alliance
Washington Township School District
Rowan University
County of Gloucester

Missa Bay, LLC
Monroe Township School District
U.S. Foodservices

ExxonMobil Research & Engineering

LaBrea Bakery

Direct Group

US Postal Service

Employees

r,825

r,675
1,586

1,483

1,368

950

814

725

540

525

1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

N/A
1,860

1,200

1,594

1,300

1,600

750

775

800

N/A
N/A

850

700

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

11,49I 11,429

Source: Gloucester County Departrnent of Economic Development and Employer Directly

Note - The information provided is for the County of Gloucester, information at the municipal level is not readily available.

N/A - lnformation not available



Township of Harrison School District
Full-time Equivelent District Employees by Function/?rogram,

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAADITED

2012 2013 20L4 2015 20L6 2017

Exhibit J-16

20182009 2010 2011

FunctionlProgram

Instruction

Regular

Special education

Other special education

Vocational
Other instruction
Nonpublic school programs

Adult/continuing education programs

Support Services:

Tuition
Student & instruction related services

General adminsitrative services

School administrative services

Business adminsitrative services

Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation

Total

Source: District Personnel Records

84.6

39.3

20.2

82.2

39.2

18.6

83.0

38.9

18.8

88

35

t4

88

35

l7

83.3

39.6

20.7

223.5

83.3

39.6

20.7

t7.0
2.0

8.0

6.3

25.8

21.8

224.5

82.3

40.7

19.2

222.1

82.3

39.4

19.2

220.6

8 t.3
37.0

18.5

19.6

2.0

8.0

6.6

24.0

18.3

ri.z
2.0

8.0

6.6
24.0

19.4

17.7

2.0

8.0

6.6

24.3

21.3

16.8

2.0

8.0

6.6

24.0

22.4

ro.o
2.0

8.0

6.6

24.6

21.3

17.0

2.0

8.0

6.3

24.8

21.8

ri.r
2.0

8.0

5.8

24.3

22.9

18

2

8

5

24

24

l8
2

8

5

24

24

N
N

218 221 224.2 218.5 220.5 2t5.3



Fiscal
Year Enrollment

0perating
Exoenditures "

Average Daily
Attendance

(ADA) d

7o Change in
Average Daily

Enrollment

Exhibit J-\7

Student
Attendance
Percentase

Township of Harrison School District
Operating Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAADITED

Teachins Staff"
PupiUTeacher

Ratio

2008

2009

20t0

20tt
2012

2013

20t4

20r5

20t6

1,55 I

1;554

t,546

r,502

1,488

t,454

r,468

1,s00

1,469

1,445

1,410

1:l 1.5

1:l 1.3

1:11.0

1:10.4

l:10.3

l:10.1

l:9.5

l:10.7

l:10.3

l:1O.2

l:10.3

1,479.0

t,454.7

1,483.2

r,439.8

1,426.3

1,380.5

1,417.5

1,431.0

1,398.7

1,375.7

1,336.8

0.00o/o

5.03%

0.73o/o

-J.39o/o

-0.79o/o

-2.73Vo

2.18o/o

1.37o/o

-2.23o/o

-1.960/o

-250%

96.33o/o

96.15%

95.90o/o

96.37o/o

96.22o/o

95.74o/o

96.2Io/o

95.82%

95.79o/o

96.I0o/o

95.77%
s20(,

20

t7

l8

16,496,74t

r7,256,878

t8,105,674

17,824,8s7

18,499,091

19,233,219

t9,288,163

t9,694,245

20,t61,t99

20,624,426

18,584,003

Cost Per

Pupilb

10,636

I 1,105

11,711

l 1,867

12,432

13,228

13,t39

13,129

t3,724

14,273

13,180

Percentage
Chanse '

l.l5o/o

4.41o/o

5.460/o

1.33o/o

4.76%

6.40o/o

4.670/o

-0.07o/o

4.53o/o

4.00o/o

-7.660/o

134

t37

r40

r44

144

r44

140

140

142

t4l
137

Average Daily
Enrollment

(ADE) d

1,461.9

1,535.4

1,546.6

t,494.1

1,482.3

t,441.9

t,473.3

1,493.s

t,460.2

t,43t.6

1,39s.8

Sources: District records

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count.

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay; Schedule J-4

b Operating Expenditures divided by enrollment. Note: this will not match any other prior calculations.
c Teaching staffincludes only full-time equivalents of certificated staff.
d Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS).



2009 2010 2011

Township of Harrison School District
School Building Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAUDITED

2012 2013

Exhibit J-18

2018

District Buildine
Elementarv
Harrison Township Elementary School (1950)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Pleasant Valley School (2001)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Number of Schools at June 30, 2018

Elementary:2

Source: District records

N
A

97,903

835

888

8787,90 I
763

629

97,903

835

857

87,901

763

662

97,903

835

863

87,901

763

683

e7p03
835

842

87,901

763

671

97,903

835

825

20t4

97,903

835

830

87,901

763

638

2015

97,903

835

836

20L6

97,903

835

792

2017

87,90 l
763

638

97,903

835

807

97,903

835

776

87,901

763

677

87,901

763

634

87 ,901

763

664

,901
763

666



Township of Harrison School District
Schedule of Required Maintenance

Last Ten Fiscal Years
ANAADITED

Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance of School Facilities
l1-000-261-xxx

Harrison
Township

Elementary
School

Exhibit J-19

Pleasant

School

ValleyFiscal Year
Ended June 30,

2009
2010

20ll
2012

2013
2014
2015

2016
2017

2018

Source: District records

$ 184,781

187,217

326,197

238,361
134,536

149,218

127,699

213,950

141,367

292,780

$ 2,121,851

109,969

88,610

83,933

91,315

78,026

12,1,178

I 18,867

73,656
124,257

144,208

s 1,096,477

$

125



School Package Policy
Property -Blanket Building & Contents

Comprehensive Genpral Liability
Aggregate

Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Crime

Data Processing

Commercial Umbrella Liability

Workmen's Compensation

School Board Legal Liability
Directors and Office

Student Accident Insurance

Basic

Catastrophic

Surety Bonds:

Board Secretary

Source: DistrictRecords

Township of Harrison School District
Insurance Schedule

June 30,2018
UNAUDITED

$

Coverage

Exhibit J-20

Deductible

39,016,425
l,oo0,00o
3,000,000
l,0oo,o00

100,000

2,800,000

g,ooo,ooo

2,000,000

6,000,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

220,000

$ 1,000

10,000

25,000

N/A

500i 1,000

500
500
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
(856)9$-n44
Fax (856) 983-6674
E-Mail : rinverso@iscpasnj.com

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAs
New Jersey Society of CPAs

RBPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUTRED By NEW JERSEY CTRCULAR 15-08-OMB

INDEPENDENT AT]DITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester
Harrison Township, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

I have audited Hanison Township School Distict (School District), in the County of Gloucester, State of New Jersey's

compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the New Jersey State Grant Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School District's major state programs for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2018. The School District's major state programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its state awards

applicable to its state prograrns.

Auditoros Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School Distict's major state prograrns based on
my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptoller General of the United States; audit requirements

as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and State of New Jersey

Circular I5-08-OMB, Single Audit Policyfor Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.Those standards

and State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and

material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the

School District's compliance with those requirements and perfonning such other procedures as I considered necessary in
the circumstances.

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major state program.

However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the School District's compliance.
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K-2
Opinion on Each Major State Program

In my opinion, the Harison Township School District, in the County of Gloucester, State of New Jersey complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on fnternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Harrison Township School Distict is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing my
audit of compliance, I considered the School District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state prograrn
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-
OMB, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance.
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hanison Township School District's internal control
over compliance.

A de/iciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signi/icant de/iciency in internal
control over cornpliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the fust paragraph of this
section and was not desiped to identiff all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not identi$ any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that I
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-

OMB. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001095

Marlton, New Jersey
January 31,2019
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K-5
Township of Harrison School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

I. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include fedelal and state

award activity of the Harrison Township School District ("School Districf'). The School District is defined in Note I to
the School District's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state

agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies, are included

on the schedules ofexpenditures offederal awards and state financial assistance.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state fr:rancial assistance are presented using the

budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using

the iccrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note I to the School District's basic financial

statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U'S' Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal

Awards, and State of New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants

and State Aid. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the

preparation of, the basic financial statements. The school district has elected not to use the l0-percent de minimis indirect

cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue frnd on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison

statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonsfiate finance-related

legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recogrized in the audit year,

*f,.trut for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recogrized until the subsequent year or when the expenditures have been

made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the

reu*e recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated

pursuant to N.l.S.,q. t8A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, payments axe not recognized until the subsequent budget year due

to the state defenal and recording of the one or more of the June state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special

revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the gant accounting budgetary basis which recogtizes

encumbrances asixpenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special

revenue fund also reiognizes the one or more June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J'S.A.

18A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile expenditures from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($1,746) in the geneial fund

and $-0- in the special revenue fund. See Exhibit C-3, Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a reconciliation

of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.

Federal State Total

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund
Food Service Fund

$ 343,237

98.895

8,884,842 $
49,031

305,085
3,169

8,884,842
392,268
305,085
102,064

$

Total Awards & Financial Assistance
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Township of Harrison School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state financial

reports.

5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received and current

year distibutioni respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Confibutions represents the amount paid by the

itate on behalf of the School District for the year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the

amount reimbursed by the State for the School Distict's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the

year ended June 30, 2018.

6. MAJOR PROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned

Costs.

7. ADJUSTMENTS

Amounts reported in the column entitled "Adjustments" represent the following:

Federal State

Prior Year Receivable Adjustments $ 1.46 $ -.64
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Financial Statemenb

Type of auditor's report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weaknesses identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

lnternal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED GOSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section I -Summary of Audito/s Results

Unmodified

NOTAPPLICABLE

no

X none reported

no

no

none reported

Name of Federal Proqram or Cluster

X

X

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

Type of audito/s report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards ( Uniform Guidance)?

ldentification of major programs:

GFDA Number(s) FAIN Number(s)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish betwwen $pe A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

noyes

1U

yes no



K-6

HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT',D)

FoR THE FISCII. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section 1 - Summary of Audito/s Results (Confd)

State Awards Section

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

lnternal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are

not considered to be material weakness?

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular Letter 15-08 as applicable?

ldentification of major programs:

State GranUProiect Number(s)

18495-034-51 20-078

1 8-495-034-51 20-089

1 8-495-034-5120-084

1 8-495-034-51 20-098

1 8-495-034-51 20-097

'l 8-495-034-51 20-1 01

$750,000

yes _ no

yes no

yes X none reported

Un

no

Name of State Proqram

State Aid Public Gluster:

X

Xyes

Eoualization Aid

Soecial Education Cateoorical Aid

Securitv Aid

PARCC Readiness

Per Pupil Growth Aid

Professional Communitv Aid

13s
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HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FTNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTJNE 30,2018

Section 2 -- Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to

the furancial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standard.s and with
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

No findings identified.
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HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Section 3 - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200; Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey Circular l5-08-OMB.

F'EDERAL AWARDS:

A federal single audit was not required.

STATE AWARDS:

A state single audit was not required.
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HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR.YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the financial statements and federal and state

awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniforn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB.

FINAIICIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no prior year audit furdings

FEDERAL AWARDS

A federal single audit was not required.

STATE AWARDS

There were no prior year audit findings.
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